

ASX ANNOUNCEMENT & MEDIA RELEASE

13 June 2013

Update - Pro Rata Non-Renounceable Entitlement Issue

As previously announced on 6 June 2013, Alcyone Resources (ASX: AYN) (the "Company") has entered into a US\$10M Silver Purchase (Off-take) Agreement with Powerline Value Fund ("Powerline") and raised additional bridge funding through the issue of 1,400,000 promissory notes (each with a face value of A\$1.00) to Celtic Capital Pty Ltd.

This is a positive step towards satisfaction of two conditions of the Company's pro rata non-renounceable rights issue offer (the "Entitlement Offer") as announced on 30 May 2013, being:

- (a) the Company obtaining A\$2.5M in additional financing prior to the closing date of the Entitlement Offer; and
- (b) the Company entering into an off-take agreement and/or silver streaming agreement and having at least A\$2M of funding drawn down or unconditionally available at the closing date of the Entitlement Offer.

The Company is working towards satisfying the draw down conditions for an initial US\$2M under the Powerline Off-take Agreement, with the key condition being the Company raising a minimum of A\$6M under the Entitlement Offer by 26 July 2013.

The Company has today lodged a replacement prospectus with ASIC and ASX for the Entitlement Offer that amends the previous prospectus (**Prospectus**) dated 29 May 2013. The updated Prospectus includes the material terms of the Powerline Off-take Agreement and Celtic Promissory Notes, the flow on effect to the Company's capital structure, use of funds table, and various other relevant sections. **An updated timetable for the Entitlement Offer is as follows:**

Lodgement of Replacement Prospectus with ASIC and ASX	13 June 2013
Replacement Prospectus despatched to Shareholders and Entitlement Offer opens	14 June 2013
Notice of Meeting dispatched to Shareholders	15 June 2013
Shareholder Meeting to approve Entitlement Offer	15 July 2013
Closing Date*	26 July 2013
Securities quoted on a deferred settlement basis	29 July 2013
ASX notified of under subscriptions	31 July 2013
Issue Date	2 August 2013
Despatch of holding statements	6 August 2013
Anticipated lifting of suspension of Securities and Quotation of Securities issued under the Entitlement Offer*	7 August 2013

^{*}The Directors may extend the Closing Date by giving at least 6 Business Days' notice to ASX prior to the Closing Date and may vary other dates without notice. As such the date the Securities are expected to commence trading on ASX may vary.

Yours sincerely,

Trevor Harris
Company Secretary

Suite 2, 85 South Perth Esplanade South Perth Western Australia 6151 www.alcyone.com.au Phone: +61 8 9476 3000 Fax: +61 8 9322 8192 Email: info@alcyone.com.au ASX Code: AYN



ENDS

About Alcyone

Alcyone Resources (ASX: AYN) commenced silver production in July 2011 at its Texas Silver & Polymetallic Project in south-east Queensland, with targeted annual silver production levels in excess of 1Moz. Alcyone has embarked on an exciting new growth phase with aggressive exploration programs underway aiming to establish a 7-10 year mine life and targeting new silver and base metal discoveries within its now 1,100km² tenement holding.

The Texas Silver & Polymetallic Project includes the Twin Hills Silver Mine and a portfolio of advanced silver and polymetallic base metal exploration targets. Alcyone has moved rapidly from acquisition of the Project in November 2009, through re-assessment and feasibility and into production.

Forward-Looking Statement

Certain statements made during or in connection with this communication, including, without limitation, those concerning exploration targets, contain or comprise certain forward-looking statements regarding Alcyone's exploration operations, economic performance and financial condition. Although Alcyone believes that the expectations reflected in such forward-looking statements are reasonable, no assurance can be given that such expectations will prove to have been correct. Accordingly, results could differ materially from those set out in the forward-looking statements as a result of, among other factors, changes in economic and market conditions, success of business and operating initiatives, changes in the regulatory environment and other government actions, fluctuations in metals prices and exchange rates and business and operational risk management. Alcyone undertakes no obligation to update publicly or release any revisions to these forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances after today's date or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events.

ALCYONE RESOURCES LIMITED ACN 056 776 160

ENTITLEMENT ISSUE REPLACEMENT PROSPECTUS

For a non-renounceable entitlement issue of 2 Shares for every 1 Share held by those Eligible Shareholders registered at the Record Date at an issue price of \$0.005 per Share to raise up to approximately \$16,250,927 (based on the number of Shares on issue as at the date of this Prospectus) together with 1 free attaching Option exercisable at \$0.01 on or before 31 July 2015 for every 2 Shares subscribed for and issued (**New Option**) (the **Entitlement Offer**).

This Prospectus contains an offer of up to 195,011,126 New Options to Patersons (or its nominee) as fees for services performed by Patersons as Lead Manager (**Broker Offer**). Refer to Section 5.3 of this Prospectus for further details of the Broker Offer.

This Prospectus contains an offer of 36,000,000 New Options to Celtic Capital (or its nominee) as fees for the Company subscribing for the Celtic Convertible Securities (**Celtic Offer**). Refer to Section 5.4 of this Prospectus for further details of the Celtic Offer.

The Offers are conditional upon the Company satisfying a number of conditions set out at Section 5.5 of this Prospectus. If these conditions are not satisfied prior to the Closing Date, then all application monies received by the Company in relation to the Offers will be refunded (without interest) in accordance with the provisions of the Corporations Act.

IMPORTANT NOTICE

This document is important and should be read in its entirety. If after reading this Prospectus you have any questions about the securities being offered under this Prospectus or any other matter, then you should consult your stockbroker, accountant or other professional adviser.

The Shares and New Options offered by this Prospectus should be considered as speculative.

This is a replacement prospectus dated 13 June 2013. It replaces a prospectus dated 29 May 2013 relating to shares of Alcyone Resources Limited (ACN 056 776 160).

CONTENTS

1.	CORPORATE DIRECTORY	1
2.	INDICATIVE TIMETABLE	2
3.	IMPORTANT NOTES	3
4.	CHAIRMAN'S LETTER	13
5.	DETAILS OF THE OFFERS	16
6.	PURPOSE AND EFFECT OF THE OFFERS	24
7.	RIGHTS AND LIABILITIES ATTACHING TO SECURITIES	33
8.	RISK FACTORS	38
9.	MATERIAL CONTRACTS	44
10.	ADDITIONAL INFORMATION	64
11.	DIRECTORS' AUTHORISATION	73
12.	GLOSSARY	74

1. CORPORATE DIRECTORY

Directors

Mr Michael Reed (Managing Director)
Dr Paul D'Sylva (Non-Executive Chairman)
Mr Tim Morrison (Non-Executive Director)

Company Secretary and CFO

Mr Trevor Harris

Registered Office

Suite 2, Level 4, 85 South Perth Esplanade South Perth WA 6151

Telephone: + 61 8 9476 3000 Facsimile: +61 8 9322 8912

Email: info@alcyone.com.au Website: www.alcyone.com.au

Share Registry*

Computershare Investor Services Pty Limited Level 2, Reserve Bank Building, 45 St Georges Terrace Perth WA 6000

Telephone: (Australia) 1300 850 505

Telephone: (Overseas) +61 (0)3 9415 4000

Facsimile: +61 8 9323 2033

Solicitors

Steinepreis Paganin Lawyers and Consultants Level 4, The Read Buildings 16 Milligan Street Perth WA 6000

Auditor*

BDO Audit (WA) Pty Ltd 38 Station St Subiaco WA 6008

Lead Manager

Patersons Securities Limited Level 23, Exchange Plaza, 2 The Esplanade Perth WA 6000

^{*} This entity is included for information purposes only. It has not been involved in the preparation of this Prospectus and has not consented to being named in this Prospectus.

2. INDICATIVE TIMETABLE

Lodgement of Prospectus with the ASIC	29 May 2013
Lodgement of Prospectus & Appendix 3B with ASX	29 May 2013
Notice sent to Optionholders	29 May 2013
Notice sent to Eligible and Ineligible Shareholders	31 May 2013
Ex date	3 June 2013
Record Date for determining Entitlements	7 June 2013
Lodgement of Replacement Prospectus	13 June 2013
Replacement Prospectus despatched to Shareholders and Entitlement Offer opens	14 June 2013
Notice of Meeting dispatched to Shareholders	15 June 2013
Shareholder Meeting to approve Entitlement Offer	15 July 2013
Closing Date*	26 July 2013
Securities quoted on a deferred settlement basis	29 July 2013
ASX notified of under subscriptions	31 July 2013
Issue Date	2 August 2013
Despatch of holding statements	6 August 2013
Anticipated lifting of suspension of Securities is lifted and Quotation of Securities issued under the Entitlement Offer*	7 August 2013

^{*}The Directors may extend the Closing Date by giving at least 6 Business Days notice to ASX prior to the Closing Date and may vary other dates without notice. As such the date the Securities are expected to commence trading on ASX may vary.

3. IMPORTANT NOTES

3.1 General

This is a replacement prospectus dated 13 June 2013 and was lodged with the ASIC on that date. This replacement prospectus replaces the original prospectus dated 29 May 2013 (**Original Prospectus**). For the purposes of this document, this replacement prospectus will be referred to as the "Prospectus".

The ASIC and its officers take no responsibility for the contents of this Prospectus or the merits of the investment to which this Prospectus relates.

No Securities may be issued on the basis of this Prospectus later than 13 months after the date of the Original Prospectus.

No person is authorised to give information or to make any representation in connection with this Prospectus, which is not contained in the Prospectus. Any information or representation not so contained may not be relied on as having been authorised by the Company in connection with this Prospectus.

It is important that investors read this Prospectus in its entirety and seek professional advice where necessary. The Shares and New Options the subject of this Prospectus should be considered highly speculative.

Applications for Securities offered pursuant to this Prospectus can only be submitted on an original Entitlement and Acceptance Form or Shortfall Application Form.

This Prospectus is a transaction specific prospectus for an offer of continuously quoted securities (as defined in the Corporations Act) and has been prepared in accordance with Section 713 of the Corporations Act. It does not contain the same level of disclosure as an initial public offering prospectus. In making representations in this Prospectus regard has been had to the fact that the Company is a disclosing entity for the purposes of the Corporations Act and certain matters may reasonably be expected to be known to investors and professional advisers whom potential investors may consult.

3.2 Summary of Replacement Prospectus

As announced on 6 June 2013, the Company has entered into a silver pre-pay and off-take agreement with Powerline (**Off-take Agreement**) and issued Celtic Capital with 1,400,000 promissory notes (each with a face value of \$1.00) (**Celtic Promissory Notes**).

This replacement prospectus primarily amends the Original Prospectus to the extent necessary to disclose to Shareholders the material terms of these agreements, and the flow on effect that the Off-take Agreement and Celtic Promissory Notes may have on the Company's capital structure, use of funds table, and various other sections of the Prospectus.

3.3 Key Risks

Potential investors should be aware that subscribing for Securities in the Company involves a number of risks. The key risk factors of which investors should be aware are set out below with additional risks specified in Section 8 of this Prospectus. These risks together with other general risks applicable to all

investments in listed securities not specifically referred to, may affect the value of the Shares and New Options in the future.

The following is a summary of the key risk factors (please refer to Section 8 of this Prospectus for a more extensive list of risk factors):

(a) Additional Financing for Operational Plans

The minimum subscription for the Entitlement Offer is \$6,000,000. The Entitlement Offer is conditional on the Company entering into a \$10,000,000 Off-take Agreement (which it has now satisfied with Powerline) or Silver Stream Agreement and having at least \$2,000,000 of funding drawn down or unconditionally available at the Closing Date under one of these agreements.

The Company is currently working to satisfy the draw down conditions for an initial \$2,000,000 draw down under the Off-take Agreement. The key condition requires the Company to raise the minimum \$6,000,000 subscription by 24 July 2012.

The Offer is also conditional on the Company obtaining \$2,500,000 in additional financing prior to the Closing Date (not including funds available under the Off-take Agreement or Silver Stream Agreement).

While the Board believes that the satisfaction of the above conditions, along with raising the minimum subscription, should enable the Company to meet its short to medium term objectives, it will not be sufficient funds for the Company to execute all of its operational plans.

To implement those plans, the Company will be reliant upon additional funding either via the Equity Placement Facility, the Silver Stream Agreement or by additional sale and pre-payment under the Powerline Off-take Agreement.

The ability of the Company to further draw down funds under the Off-take Agreement is conditional upon the Company paying off the initial draw down amount (\$2,500,000) via the production and delivery of silver from the Company's projects. Based on current production rate, the Board believes that the Company will be able to pay-off the outstanding amounts under the Off-take Agreement prior to the Company needing additional funding. However if the Company's production is delayed for any reason, this will delay the Company's ability to draw down further funding under the Off-take Agreement.

If the Company is unable to draw down on the Equity Placement Facility or an Off-take Agreement/Silver Stream Agreement when required, the Company will need to raise additional funds to execute all of its operational plans.

The Company may not be able to successfully raise additional financing after the close of the Entitlement Offer. The Company's failure to raise capital, if and when needed, could delay or suspend the Company's business strategy and could have a material adverse effect on the Company's activities and may result in the Company becoming insolvent.

(b) Drawdown of Equity Placement Facility

The Company's right to draw down funds under the Equity Placement Facility is subject to a number of conditions summarised at Section 9.7 of this Prospectus.

These conditions include (amongst others), the Company having sufficient placement capacity under ASX Listing Rule 7.1 to issue Shares, and the Shares to be issued to Celtic Capital being freely tradeable on ASX.

In order to have sufficient placement capacity, Shareholders will have to approve the issue of Shares under the Equity Placement Facility, or ratify the prior issue of securities by the Company, at the Shareholder Meeting. In order for the Shares to be freely tradeable on ASX the Company will have to issue a cleansing prospectus under Section 708A (11) of the Corporations Act in relation to those Shares.

If the Company is unable to meet any of these conditions, then the Company will be unable to require draw down under the Equity Placement Facility and the Company may need to obtain funding from alternate sources.

(c) Default risk – Debt and Convertible Security Agreements

The Company is currently a party to a number of debt financing agreements and convertible security agreements summarised at Section 9 of this Prospectus.

Under these agreements, the Company has obligations to either repay outstanding amounts owed by the Company on the relevant due dates, or issue Shares upon receipt of a conversion notice (subject to Shareholder approval). These agreements also have a number of other provisions and negative covenants that the Company must adhere to.

Should the Company default on its obligations under any of these agreements (including the Company failing to obtain Shareholder approval for the issue of Shares on conversion of certain Convertible Securities), the relevant debtor may demand immediate repayment, and may trigger cross defaults in respect of the Company's other debt and equity agreements.

In addition, if the Company defaults on its obligations under the Bergen Debt Security, the cash amount outstanding in respect of the Bergen Debt Security will automatically increase by \$300,000. At the date of this Prospectus, no such breach has been notified by Bergen Global to the Company.

Should a default occur, and the Company is unable to raise sufficient funds or otherwise cure the defaults, the Company's creditors may seek immediate repayment of the debts and, if secured, enforce their security and sell some or all of the Company's assets, and this may result in the Company being insolvent.

(d) **Default Risk**

The Company currently has a number of agreements on foot or being negotiated, including royalty, debt, equity and off-take/silver streaming agreements. These agreements contain certain negative covenants

that restrict the operations of the Company absent the consent of the relevant counterparties under the specific agreement.

The Company has recently been involved in a fast flow of events stemming from the Company's operational difficulties (in part due to unexpected issues with the availability of the drill & blast contractor and cyclonic rains that hit south-east Queensland in late 2012) and the Company's immediate need for additional financing.

The Board has been striving to keep all the relevant parties to these agreements fully informed and obtained necessary consents when required. Due to the large number of agreements that the Company is currently a party to, there is a risk that the Company may have inadvertently breached some of these agreements.

If there is an inadvertent material breach under any of these agreements which is not capable of remedy, the relevant party may wish to enforce its rights which could have a material adverse effect upon the Company and possibly lead to the Company being insolvent.

Due to the fact that the Board has been working closely with these relevant parties in order to make this Entitlement Offer, the Board is confident that it will be able to remedy or work around any such breach.

(e) Dilution Risk – Entitlement Offer, Broker Offer and Celtic Offer

Upon implementation of the Entitlement Offer, assuming all Entitlements are accepted and no Shares are issued or Options or Convertible Securities are exercised prior to the Record Date, the number of Shares in the Company will increase from 1,625,092,716 currently on issue to 4,875,278,148. In addition, subject to Shareholder approval, approximately 351,261,934 Shares in total will be issued to Celtic Capital and Powerline, taking the total Shares on issue to approximately 5,226,540,082.

Shareholders should also note that at the conclusion of the Entitlement Offer, Broker Offer and Celtic Offer there will be up to an additional 1,856,103,842 New Options on issue (including the issue of 195,011,126 Broker Options) assuming full subscription. If all New Options issued under the Entitlement Offer and Broker Offer are subsequently exercised, an additional 1,856,103,842 Shares will be issued.

Shareholders who do not participate in the Entitlement Offer will have their current Shareholding significantly diluted.

(f) Dilution Risk – Convertible Securities and Equity Placement Facility

As at the date of this Prospectus, the Company currently has two convertible securities and 3,200,002 convertible debt securities on issue with a combined face value of \$6,375,000 (Convertible Securities). If the Entitlement Offer is fully subscribed, the Company intends to fully redeem these Convertible Securities using funds raised from the Entitlement Offer. For further details in relation to use of funds, refer to Section 6.1 of this Prospectus.

If the Entitlement Offer is undersubscribed, the Company will not have enough cash to fully redeem the Convertible Securities and some of them may be converted into Shares. Each is convertible (subject to Shareholder approval, which is being sought at the Shareholder Meeting) into Shares at the election of the holder at various discounts to the market VWAP of Shares prior to conversion.

In addition, the Company may seek to draw down funds under the Equity Placement Facility (if available).

Shareholders will have their shareholding significantly diluted if, and to the extent, these Convertible Securities are converted (assuming Shareholder approval is obtained) and the Equity Placement Facility is drawn down. The terms of the Convertible Securities currently on issue and the Equity Placement Facility are summarised at Section 9 of this Prospectus.

(g) Dilution Risk – Additional Securities

Shareholders should also note that the Company intends issuing a substantial number of Shares, Options and Performance Rights to various financiers and Directors, subject to receiving Shareholder approval at the Shareholder Meeting scheduled for 15 July 2013. Shareholders will be substantially diluted if all of these Shares are issued and if the Options and Performance Rights are issued and exercised or converted. Further details are provided in the Notice of Meeting provided to Shareholders.

(h) Future Capital Requirements

If the Company is unable to generate sufficient cash surplus from operations, and/ or use debt or equity to fund its future capital expenditure programs there can be no assurances that the Company will be able to obtain additional fundraising on terms acceptable to the Company or at all. Any future additional equity financing may be dilutive to shareholders and any debt financing if available may involve restrictive covenants, which may limit the Company's operations and business strategy.

The ability of the Company to continue as a going concern and to meet planned and committed expenditure requirements is subject to the Company successfully exploiting the investments and mining projects owned by the Company and/or obtaining equity or debt capital as required.

There is no assurance that the Company will be able to successfully raise sufficient funds in order to develop its assets or meet its financing repayment obligations.

The Company's failure to raise capital, if and when needed, could delay or suspend the Company's business strategy and could have a material adverse effect on the Company's activities, and could lead to the Company being insolvent.

(i) Silver price volatility and exchange rate

The Company commenced silver production in 2011 at its flagship Texas Silver & Polymetallic Project in south-east Queensland. The revenue it will

derive through the sale of silver exposes the potential income of the Company to price and exchange rate risks. Silver prices fluctuate and are affected by many factors beyond the control of the Company. Such factors include supply and demand fluctuations for precious metals, technological advancements, forward selling activities and other macro-economic factors.

Furthermore, international prices of silver are denominated in United States dollars, whereas the income and expenditure of the Company are and will be taken into account in Australian currency, exposing the Company to the fluctuations and volatility of the rate of exchange between the United States dollar and the Australian dollar as determined in international markets.

(j) Silver - Operating and Development Risks

The Company's ability to achieve production, development, operating cost and capital expenditure estimates on a timely basis cannot be assured. The business of silver mining involves many risks and may be impacted by factors including ore tonnes, yield, input prices (some of which are unpredictable and outside the control of the Company), overall availability of free cash to fund continuing development activities, labour force disruptions, cost overruns, changes in the regulatory environment and other unforeseen contingencies. Other risks also exist such as environmental hazards (including discharge of or hazardous chemicals), industrial accidents pollutants occupational and health hazards. Such occurrences could result in damage to, or destruction of, production facilities, personal injury or death, environmental damage, delays in mining, increased production costs and other monetary losses and possible legal liability. The Company may become subject to liability for pollution or other hazards against which it has not insured or cannot insure, including those in respect of past mining activities for which it was not responsible.

In addition the Company's profitability could be adversely affected if for any reason its production of silver or mine development is unexpectedly interrupted or slowed. Silver production at the Company's Texas Silver Project has recently been hampered by equipment failures, lack of availability of drill rigs, heavy rainfall and flooding. These events have adversely affected the silver production from the mine and consequently adversely affected the financial position of the Company, including its ability to meet pre-paid deliveries. These are examples of such events that have, and could in future, adversely impact on the Company's production and processing.

Other general examples of possible adverse events include unscheduled plant shutdowns or other processing problems, mechanical failures, the unavailability of materials and equipment, pit slope failures, unusual or unexpected rock formations, poor or unexpected geological or metallurgical conditions, poor or inadequate ventilation, failure of mine communication systems, poor water condition, interruptions to gas and electricity supplies and human error.

The risks outlined above also mean that there can be no assurances as to the future on-going development of the mining operation in relation to any of the Company's projects described in this Prospectus or which the Company may acquire in the future.

(k) Equipment and availability

The Company's ability to undertake mining and exploration activities is dependent upon its ability to source and acquire appropriate mining equipment. Equipment is not always available and the market for mining equipment experiences fluctuations in supply and demand. If the Company is unable to source appropriate equipment economically or at all then this would have a material adverse effect on the Company's financial or trading position.

(I) Reliance on key personnel

The responsibility of overseeing the day-to-day operations and the strategic management of the Company depends substantially on its senior management and its key personnel. There can be no assurance given that there will be no detrimental impact on the Company if one or more of these employees cease their employment.

3.4 Foreign Jurisdictions

This Entitlement Offer does not, and is not intended to, constitute an offer in any place or jurisdiction in which, or to any person to whom, it would not be lawful to make such an offer or to issue this Prospectus.

The Entitlement Offer is not being extended and Shares and New Options will not be issued to Shareholders with a registered address which is outside Australia, New Zealand, Germany, Hong Kong, Singapore, Switzerland, the United Kingdom or Thailand. It is not practicable for the Company to comply with the securities laws of overseas jurisdictions (other than those mentioned above) having regard to the number of overseas Shareholders, the number and value of Shares and New Options these Shareholders would be offered and the cost of complying with regulatory requirements in each relevant jurisdiction.

For further details in relation to foreign jurisdictions please refer to Section 5.15 of this Prospectus.

European Economic Area - Germany

The information in this document has been prepared on the basis that all offers of Shares and New Options will be made pursuant to an exemption under the Directive 2003/71/EC (**Prospectus Directive**), as implemented in Member States of the European Economic Area (each, a **Relevant Member State**), from the requirement to produce a prospectus for offers of securities.

An offer to the public of Shares and New Options has not been made, and may not be made, in a Relevant Member State except pursuant to one of the following exemptions under the Prospectus Directive as implemented in that Relevant Member State:

- (a) to legal entities that are authorised or regulated to operate in the financial markets or, if not so authorised or regulated, whose main business is to invest in financial instruments;
- (b) to any legal entity that satisfies two of the following three criteria: (i) balance sheet total of at least €20,000,000; (ii) annual net turnover of at least €40,000,000 and (iii) own funds of at least €2,000,000 (as shown on its last annual unconsolidated or consolidated financial statements);

- (c) to any person or entity who has requested to be treated as a professional client in accordance with the EU Markets in Financial Instruments Directive (Directive 2004/39/EC, MiFID);
- (d) to any person or entity who is recognised as an eligible counterparty in accordance with Article 24 of the MiFID;
- (e) to fewer than 150 natural or legal persons (other than qualified investors within the meaning of Article 2(1)(e) of the Prospectus Directive) subject to obtaining the prior consent of the Company and any underwriter for any such offer; or
- (f) in any other circumstances falling within Article 3(2) of the Prospectus Directive, provided that no such offer of Shares and New Options shall result in a requirement for the publication by the Company of a prospectus pursuant to Article 3 of the Prospectus Directive.

Hong Kong

WARNING: The contents of this document have not been reviewed by any Hong Kong regulatory authority. You are advised to exercise caution in relation to the offer. If you are in doubt about any contents of this document, you should obtain independent professional advice.

New Zealand

The Shares and New Options are not being offered or sold to the public within New Zealand other than to existing shareholders of the Company with registered addresses in New Zealand and to whom the Offer is being made in reliance on the Securities Act (Overseas Companies) Exemption Notice 2002 (New Zealand).

This document has not been registered, filed with or approved by any New Zealand regulatory authority under the Securities Act 1978 (New Zealand). This document is not an investment statement or prospectus under New Zealand law and is not required to, and may not, contain all the information that an investment statement or prospectus under New Zealand law is required to contain.

Singapore

This document and any other materials relating to the Shares and New Options have not been, and will not be, lodged or registered as a prospectus in Singapore with the Monetary Authority of Singapore. Accordingly, this document and any other document or materials in connection with the offer or sale, or invitation for subscription or purchase, of Shares and New Options may not be issued, circulated or distributed, nor may the securities be offered or sold, or be made the subject of an invitation for subscription or purchase, whether directly or indirectly, to persons in Singapore except pursuant to and in accordance with exemptions in Subdivision (4) Division 1, Part XIII of the Securities and Futures Act, Chapter 289 of Singapore (the **SFA**), or as otherwise pursuant to, and in accordance with the conditions of any other applicable provisions of the SFA.

This document has been given to you on the basis that you are an existing holder of the Company's shares. In the event that you are not such a shareholder, please return this document immediately. You may not forward or circulate this document to any other person in Singapore.

Any offer is not made to you with a view to the Shares and New Options being subsequently offered for sale to any other party. There are on-sale restrictions in Singapore that may be applicable to investors who acquire Shares and New Options. As such, investors are advised to acquaint themselves with the SFA provisions relating to resale restrictions in Singapore and comply accordingly.

Switzerland

The Shares and New Options may not be publicly offered in Switzerland and will not be listed on the SIX Swiss Exchange (SIX) or on any other stock exchange or regulated trading facility in Switzerland. This document has been prepared without regard to the disclosure standards for issuance prospectuses under art. 652a or art. 1156 of the Swiss Code of Obligations or the disclosure standards for listing prospectuses under art. 27 ff. of the SIX Listing Rules or the listing rules of any other stock exchange or regulated trading facility in Switzerland. Neither this document nor any other offering or marketing material relating to the Shares and New Options may be publicly distributed or otherwise made publicly available in Switzerland.

Neither this document nor any other offering or marketing material relating to the Shares and New Options have been or will be filed with or approved by any Swiss regulatory authority. In particular, this document will not be filed with, and the offer of securities will not be supervised by, the Swiss Financial Market Supervisory Authority (FINMA).

This document is personal to the recipient only and not for general circulation in Switzerland

United Kingdom

Neither the information in this document nor any other document relating to the offer has been delivered for approval to the Financial Services Authority in the United Kingdom and no prospectus (within the meaning of Section 85 of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000, as amended (**FSMA**)) has been published or is intended to be published in respect of the Shares and New Options.

This document is issued on a confidential basis to fewer than 150 persons (other than "qualified investors" (within the meaning of Section 86(7) of FSMA)) in the United Kingdom, and the Shares and New Options may not be offered or sold in the United Kingdom by means of this document, any accompanying letter or any other document, except in circumstances which do not require the publication of a prospectus pursuant to Section 86(1) FSMA. This document should not be distributed, published or reproduced, in whole or in part, nor may its contents be disclosed by recipients to any other person in the United Kingdom.

Any invitation or inducement to engage in investment activity (within the meaning of Section 21 FSMA) received in connection with the issue or sale of the Shares and New Options has only been communicated or caused to be communicated and will only be communicated or caused to be communicated in the United Kingdom in circumstances in which Section 21(1) FSMA does not apply to the Company.

Thailand

This document is not intended to be an offer, sale or invitation for subscription or purchase of securities in Thailand. This document has not been registered as a prospectus with the Office of the Securities and Exchange Commission of Thailand. Accordingly, this document and any other documents and material in connection with the offer, sale or invitation for subscription or purchase, of the shares may not be circulated or distributed, nor may the shares be offered or sold, or be made the subject of an invitation for subscription or purchase, whether directly or indirectly, to the public or any members of the public in Thailand.

United States

This document may not be released or distributed in the United States. This document does not constitute an offer to sell, or a solicitation of an offer to buy, securities in the United States. Any securities described in this document have not been, and will not be, registered under the US Securities Act of 1933 and may not be offered or sold in the United States except in transactions exempt from, or not subject to, registration under the US Securities Act and applicable US state securities laws.

3.5 Forward-looking statements

This Prospectus contains forward-looking statements which are identified by words such as 'may', 'could', 'believes', 'estimates', 'targets', 'expects', or 'intends' and other similar words that involve risks and uncertainties.

These statements are based on an assessment of present economic and operating conditions, and on a number of assumptions regarding future events and actions that, as at the date of this Prospectus, are expected to take place.

Such forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future performance and involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties, assumptions and other important factors, many of which are beyond the control of our Company, the Directors and our management.

We cannot and do not give any assurance that the results, performance or achievements expressed or implied by the forward-looking statements contained in this prospectus will actually occur and investors are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements.

We have no intention to update or revise forward-looking statements, or to publish prospective financial information in the future, regardless of whether new information, future events or any other factors affect the information contained in this prospectus, except where required by law.

These forward looking statements are subject to various risk factors that could cause our actual results to differ materially from the results expressed or anticipated in these statements. These risk factors are set out in Sections 3.3 and 8 of this Prospectus.

4. CHAIRMAN'S LETTER

Dear Shareholder,

As you are no doubt aware, Alcyone Resources Limited (**Alcyone**) has experienced some operational difficulties in recent times. Production at its flagship Texas Silver & Polymetallic Project in south-east Queensland in the first quarter of 2013 was lower than anticipated, in part due to unexpected issues with the availability of the drill & blast contractor and, cyclonic rains that recently hit south-east Queensland.

The Company has since undertaken a review of the Texas operations and identified additional operational and capital improvements that should enable the Company to increase throughput and enhance future mining fleet availability. However, in order to implement these improvements, the Company needs access to significant additional funding.

As announced to the Australian Securities Exchange (ASX) on 30 May 2013, Alcyone Resources is pleased to provide this Prospectus and Entitlement and Acceptance Form in relation to the non-renounceable entitlement offer (Entitlement Offer) that is being lead and managed by Paterson Securities Limited (Patersons).

The Entitlement Offer will provide all Shareholders with the opportunity to subscribe for Company Shares on a 2 for 1 basis at \$0.005 per Share with 1 free attaching New Option exercisable at \$0.01 on or before 31 July 2015 for every 2 shares subscribed for and issued.

Official quotation of the Shares and New Options by the ASX is anticipated to occur on or around 7 August 2013, along with the lifting of the suspension of trading of the Company's securities on the ASX.

Apart from seeking to raise additional funds through the Entitlement Offer under this Prospectus, the Company is in the process of securing additional funding as follows.

Sources of Funding	Funding Amount
Bridge Financing	Up to A\$2,500,000
Off-take Agreement	A\$10,000,000, proposed to be available to the Company via staged pre-payments satisfied by the Company's silver production.
Silver Stream Agreement	US\$10,000,000 up front plus a discounted amount for 15% of the Company's production at Texas Project over the life of the mine.

The Company estimates it will need to obtain additional funding of \$2,500,000 before the Entitlement Offer is completed in order to meet its anticipated expenditure commitments. The Company has recently secured \$700,000 of this funding via the issue of the Celtic Promissory Notes. The Company anticipates it will secure the additional funding through similar short-term bridge financing arrangements in the coming weeks. This is a condition of the Offers and, if the Company does not secure the full \$2,500,000 in additional funding prior to the Closing Date, then all application money will be returned in accordance with the Corporations Act.

Assuming this bridge financing can be secured, the Company expects to be able to meet its short to medium term objectives if the minimum subscription of \$6,000,000 under the Rights Issue is raised and provided a \$10,000,000 Off-take Agreement or Silver Stream Agreement can be executed and partially drawn down.

It is a condition of the Offers that the Company enters into one of these agreement and has at least \$2,000,000 of funding drawn down or unconditionally available at the Closing Date under one of these agreements. As such, the Offers will not proceed unless this condition is satisfied. The Company has entered into the Powerline Offtake Agreement and is working towards satisfying the conditions to securing an initial \$2,000,000 prepayment prior to the Closing Date, with additional amounts intended to be drawn down on a progressive basis as each drawn down is repaid in silver.

The Offers are also conditional on Shareholders approving the Rights Issue at the Shareholder Meeting scheduled for 15 July 2013.

The Board also invites all Shareholders to apply for Shortfall Shares and New Options. If each Shareholder in the Company applies for approximately \$1,500 worth of Shares, the Entitlement Offer will be fully subscribed. Should Shareholders wish to subscribe for additional Shares and New Options above their Entitlement they can do so by filling in the area on their Entitlement and Acceptance Form that is designated to the Shortfall, and by paying the applicable Shortfall application money.

If fully subscribed, the Entitlement Offer will raise approximately \$16.25 million (before costs) and, along with the other previously announced capital initiatives relating to the realisation of Alcyone's hedge book, silver purchase agreement and pre-pay and off-take facility (if agreed), the Company will have sufficient capital to upgrade key plant and equipment, retire existing debt and retain a strong working capital position. These initiatives are described in more detail in the Alcyone Investor Presentation available on the Company's ASX website, and at www.alcyone.com.au.

The proceeds from the Entitlement Offer will be used towards:

- (a) redeeming the Company's Convertible Securities (including promissory/bridge notes) by paying out amounts owing under the Convertible Securities (depending on the amount raised under the Entitlement Offer);
- (b) paying out creditors of the Company (depending on the amount raised under the Entitlement Offer);
- (c) plant and equipment upgrades at the Company's Texas Silver Project; and
- (d) providing additional working capital.

Further details in relation to the Company's use of funds, including a specific break down, and details of the apportionment of funds in the event of under subscription, is set out in Section 6.1 of this Prospectus.

Investors should be aware that subscribing for Shares and New Options in the Entitlement Offer involves a number of specific risks associated with financing, mining, operations, exploration activities, commodity prices, insolvency and default risks. Details of these specific risks are set out in Sections 3.3 and 8 of this Prospectus.

By taking up your Entitlements, Shareholders will have the opportunity to participate in the strengthening of Alcyone's financial situation and the potential upside from the improvements which the Company is seeking to implement at the Company's flagship Texas Silver Project.

The Board of Directors encourage you to take up your Entitlement under the Entitlement Offer and take this opportunity to thank all shareholders for their continued support as we continue to develop the Company.

Yours faithfully, Dr Paul D'Sylva Non-executive Chairman

5. DETAILS OF THE OFFERS

5.1 The Entitlement Offer

The Entitlement Offer is being made as a non-renounceable entitlement issue of 2 Shares for every 1 Share held by Shareholders registered at the Record Date at an issue price of \$0.005 per Share, together with 1 free attaching New Option for every 2 Shares subscribed for and issued. Fractional entitlements will be rounded up to the nearest whole number of Shares and/or New Options (as the case may be).

Based on the capital structure of the Company as at the date of this Prospectus, (and assuming no existing Options, Performance Rights or Convertible Securities are exercised prior to the Record Date) a maximum of 3,250,185,432 Shares and 1,625,092,716 New Options will be issued pursuant to this Entitlement Offer to raise up to \$16,250,927.

All of the Shares offered under this Prospectus will rank equally with the Shares on issue at the date of this Prospectus. Please refer to Section 7.1 for further information regarding the rights and liabilities attaching to the Shares.

All of the New Options offered under this Prospectus will be issued on the terms and conditions set out in Section 7.2 of this Prospectus.

All Shares issued on conversion of the New Options will rank equally with the Shares on issue at the date of this Prospectus.

The purpose of the Entitlement Offer and the intended use of funds raised are set out in Section 6.1 of this Prospectus.

5.2 Minimum subscription

The minimum subscription to be raised pursuant to the Entitlement Offer is \$6,000,000.

If the minimum subscription is not raised within four (4) months after the date of this Prospectus, or such longer period as is permitted by the Corporations Act, none of the Shares and New Options offered under the Offer under this Prospectus will be allotted or issued. In these circumstances, all applications will be deal with in accordance with the Corporations Act.

5.3 Broker Offer

This Prospectus includes a separate offer to Patersons (or its nominees) in consideration for brokerage services in relation to the Entitlement Offer, 6% of the total number of Shares issued under the Entitlement Offer, being up to 195,011,126 New Options (**Broker Offer**). The New Options will be issued on the terms and conditions set out at Section 7.2 of this Prospectus.

Only Patersons or its nominees may accept the Broker Offer. Accordingly, do not complete the Broker Offer Acceptance Form unless you are directed to do so by Patersons.

5.4 Celtic Offer

This Prospectus includes a separate offer of 36,000,000 New Options to Celtic Capital (or its nominees) in consideration for Celtic Capital paying \$1,200,000

and subscribing for the Celtic Convertible Debt Securities. For further details in relation to the terms of the Celtic Convertible Debt Securities refer to Section 9.4 of this Prospectus.

The Company will apply for the 36,000,000 New Options to be quoted on ASX. They will be issued on the terms and conditions set out at Section 7.2 of this Prospectus.

The Celtic Offer is personal to Celtic Capital (or its nominee) and as such do not complete the Celtic Acceptance Form unless you are directed to do so by Celtic Capital.

5.5 Conditions of the Offers

None of the Offers will proceed unless the conditions set out below are satisfied:

(a) Shareholder Approval

The Company has sought and received a conditional waiver from ASX in relation to Listing Rule 7.11.3 to allow the Company to undertake the Entitlement Offer.

Listing Rule 7.11.3 provides that the ratio of securities offered by a listed entity for a pro rata issue must not be greater than one security for each security held, unless the offer is renounceable and the issue price is not more than the average market price for the securities in that class, calculated over the last 5 days on which the sales in securities were recorded before the day on which the pro rata issue was announced.

As the Entitlement Offer is non-renounceable and involves a ratio of two-for-one (2:1) Shares, plus a one-for-two (1:2) free attaching New Option, the Company has made application for, and ASX have granted, a conditional waiver of Listing Rule 7.11.3.

This waiver is conditional on the Company obtaining shareholder approval in relation to the Entitlement Offer at the shareholder meeting to be held before completion of the Entitlement Offer. A Notice of Meeting will be announced on the Company ASX announcement platform and sent to Shareholders shortly after this Prospectus is lodged with ASIC.

The Offers are conditional upon Shareholders approving the Entitlement Offer at the Shareholder Meeting which is currently scheduled for 15 July 2013.

(b) Short Term Bridging Financing

The Company is currently in discussions with a number of parties with a view to securing additional funding, both short and long term (by way of debt or equity). In order to meet the Company's short term expenditure obligations, the Company estimates that it requires additional financing of \$2,500,000 before the Entitlement Offer is completed.

While the Company anticipates it will secure this funding in the coming weeks, if the Company is unable to secure this additional financing during June or July 2013, this could delay or suspend the Company's business strategy and could have a material adverse effect on the

Company's activities, and could lead to the Company becoming insolvent.

To reduce the above risk of insolvency for potential investors, the Company has decided to make the Offers conditional upon the Company obtaining \$2,500,000 in additional financing prior to the Closing Date (\$700,000 of which has been secured by the Company under the issue of the Celtic Promissory Notes).

(c) Off-take/Silver Stream Agreement

As announced on the ASX on 6 June 2013, the Company has recently entered into the Off-take Agreement which sets out the terms on which the Company may sell silver to Powerline via either sale transactions or pre-pay transactions. The terms of the Off-take Agreement are summarised at Section 9.8 of this Prospectus.

As previously announced on the ASX on 17 May 2013, the Company has entered into a non-binding term sheet in relation to a metal streaming agreement under which the Company may receive up to \$10,000,000 in consideration for the Company providing 15% of the silver produced from the Company's current projects at a discount to market price (Silver Stream Agreement). The Silver Stream Agreement is conditional upon the Company entering into a formal binding agreement.

Assuming minimum subscription under the Entitlement Offer (\$6,000,000), the Board believes that the Company will be reliant upon at least \$2,000,000 in funds being available or capable of draw down under at least one of these agreements at the Closing Date to meet the Company's short to mid term obligations and objectives. As such, the Offers are conditional upon the Company entering into one or both of the Off-take Agreement or Silver Stream Agreement and having at least \$2,000,000 of funding drawn down or unconditionally available at the Closing Date under one of these agreements. By entering into the Powerline Off-take Agreement, the Company has taken decisive action towards satisfying this condition.

(d) Effect of Unsatisfied Conditions

If the Offers do not become unconditional within four (4) months after the date of this Prospectus, or such longer period as is permitted by the Corporations Act, none of the Shares and New Options offered under the Offers under this Prospectus will be issued. In these circumstances, all applications will be dealt with in accordance with the Corporations Act.

5.6 Acceptance

Your acceptance of the Entitlement Offer must be made on the Entitlement and Acceptance Form accompanying this Prospectus or by completing a BPAY® payment, in accordance with the instructions referred to in this Prospectus and on the Entitlement and Acceptance Form. Your acceptance must not exceed your Entitlement (as shown on that form) unless application is made for the Shortfall in the prescribed area on the Entitlement and Acceptance Form (refer to Section 5.7 of this Prospectus for further details of the Shortfall). If your acceptance does exceed your Entitlement (unless applied for under the Shortfall), your acceptance will be deemed to be for your maximum Entitlement and any surplus money will be refunded.

You may participate in the Entitlement Offer as follows:

- (a) if you wish to accept your **full** Entitlement:
 - (i) complete the Entitlement and Acceptance Form; and
 - (ii) attach your cheque, drawn on an Australian bank or bank draft made payable in Australian currency, for the amount indicated on the Entitlement and Acceptance Form; or
 - (iii) pay the appropriate application monies at \$0.005 per Share through the BPAY® facility described below. If you make your payment by BPAY®, you do not need to return the Entitlement and Acceptance Form; or
- (b) if you only wish to accept **part** of your Entitlement:
 - (i) fill in the number of Shares you wish to accept in the space provided on the Entitlement and Acceptance Form; and
 - (ii) attach your cheque, drawn on an Australian bank or bank draft made payable in Australian currency, for the appropriate application monies (at \$0.005 per Share); or
 - (iii) pay the appropriate application monies at \$0.005 per Share through the BPAY® facility described below. If you make your payment by BPAY®, you do not need to return the Entitlement and Acceptance Form; or
- (c) if you do not wish to accept all or part of your Entitlement, you are not obliged to do anything.

There is no need to indicate the number of New Options being applied for on the Entitlement and Acceptance Form. The New Options are free and will be calculated and issued by the Company on the basis of the number of Shares subscribed for under the Entitlement Offer.

Should you wish to apply for more than your Entitlement, please follow the procedure outlined in Section 5.7 below.

5.7 Shortfall Offer

Any Entitlement not taken up pursuant to the Entitlement Offer will form the Shortfall Offer. The Shortfall Offer is open to all investors.

Eligible Shareholders may apply for additional Shares (free attaching New Options included) under the Shortfall by completing the prescribed area on the Entitlement and Acceptance Form designated to the Shortfall and by paying the appropriate application monies in accordance with the instructions set out in the Entitlement and Acceptance Form.

Additionally, other investors who are not currently Shareholders who wish to participate in the Shortfall, may apply for Shares and New Options using the Shortfall Acceptance Form attached to this Prospectus by following the instructions set out on the Shortfall Acceptance Form.

The Shortfall Offer is a separate offer made pursuant to this Prospectus and will remain open for up to three months following the Closing Date. The issue price

for each Share to be issued under the Shortfall Offer shall be \$0.005 being the price at which Shares have been offered under the Entitlement Offer (including 1 free attaching New Option for every 2 Shares subscribed for and issued).

The Directors reserve the right, in consultation with the Lead Manager, to issue Shortfall Securities at their absolute discretion. As such there is no guarantee that participating parties will receive any additional Shares applied for under the Shortfall. The Directors reserve the right to allot to an applicant a lesser number of Shares than the number, for which the applicant applies, or to reject an application, or to not proceed with placing the Shortfall. In that event, application monies (without interest) will be refunded by the Company in accordance with the provisions of the Corporations Act.

5.8 Payment by cheque/bank draft

All cheques must be drawn on an Australian bank or bank draft made payable in Australian currency to "Alcyone Resources Limited" and crossed "Not Negotiable".

Your completed Entitlement and Acceptance Form and cheque must reach the Company's share registry at the address below no later than 5:00 pm WST on the Closing Date:

Alcyone Resources Limited C/- Computershare Investor Services Pty Limited GPO Box 505 Melbourne VIC 3000, Australia.

5.9 Payment by BPAY®

For payment by BPAY®, please follow the instructions on the Entitlement and Acceptance Form. You can only make a payment via BPAY® if you are the holder of an account with an Australian financial institution that supports BPAY® transactions. Please note that should you choose to pay by BPAY®:

- (a) you do not need to submit the Entitlement and Acceptance Form but are taken to have made the declarations on that Entitlement and Acceptance Form; and
- (b) if you do not pay for your Entitlement in full, you are deemed to have taken up your Entitlement in respect of such whole number of Shares which is covered in full by your application monies.

It is your responsibility to ensure that your BPAY® payment is received by the share registry by no later than 4:00pm (WST) on the Closing Date. You should be aware that your financial institution may implement earlier cut-off times with regards to electronic payment and you should therefore take this into consideration when making payment. Any application monies received for more than your final allocation of Shares (only where the amount is \$1.00 or greater) will be refunded. No interest will be paid on any application monies received or refunded.

The Entitlement Offer is non-renounceable. Accordingly, a Shareholder may not sell or transfer all or part of their Entitlement.

5.10 Underwriting

The Entitlement Offer is not underwritten.

5.11 Dilution and Effect on control of the Company

Shareholders should note that if they do not participate in the Entitlement Offer, their holdings are likely to be diluted by approximately 200% (assuming full subscription under the Entitlement Offer and no other Shares being issued) as compared to their holdings and number of Shares on issue as at the date of the Prospectus.

Shareholders should also note that at the conclusion of the Entitlement Offer, Broker Offer and Celtic Offer there will be up to an additional 1,856,103,842 New Options on issue (including the issue of 195,011,126 Broker Options) assuming full subscription.

If all New Options issued under the Entitlement Offer, Broker Offer and Celtic Offer are subsequently exercised, an additional 1,856,103,842 Shares would be issued thereby causing the shareholdings of non-participating Shareholders to be diluted by an additional 114.22% and taking the total dilution effect to 314.22%. If all New Options offered under the Entitlement Offer and Broker Offer are exercised then the Company would receive an additional \$18,561,038 in additional funds.

Examples of how your Share holding may be diluted (assuming no New Options are exercised) is set out in the table below:

Holder	Holding as at Record date	% at Record Date	Entitlements under the Offer	Holdings if Offer not taken Up	% post Offer
Shareholder 1	250,000,000	15.38%	500,000,000	250,000,000	5.13%
Shareholder 2	100,000,000	6.15%	200,000,000	100,000,000	2.05%
Shareholder 3	25,000,000	1.54%	50,000,000	25,000,000	0.51%
Shareholder 4	10,000,000	0.62%	20,000,000	10,000,000	0.205%
Shareholder 5	1,000,000	0.06%	2,000,000	1,000,000	0.021%
Total	1,625,092,716	100%	3,250,185,432	1,625,092,716	33.33%

Notes:

- 1. This table is intended to show the dilution effect that the Entitlement Offer could potentially have on Shareholders and as such does not take into account Shares that may be independently issued by the Company after the Record Date but before completion of the Entitlement Offer. Any such issue of Shares would further dilute the holdings of Shareholders but would not be as a result of the Entitlement Offer.
- 2. This assumes the Entitlement Offer is fully subscribed and that no Options or Convertible Securities are exercised (including New Options offered under the Offers).
- 3. The dilutionary effect shown in the table is the maximum percentage on the assumption that those Entitlements not accepted are placed under the Shortfall Offer. In the event all Entitlements are not accepted and some or all of the resulting Shortfall was not subsequently placed, the dilution effect for each Shareholder not accepting their Entitlement would be a lesser percentage.

5.12 Lead Manager

Patersons Securities Limited (**Lead Manager**) has been appointed as lead manager to the Entitlement Offer. The terms of the appointment of the Lead Manager are summarised in Section 9.9 of this Prospectus.

5.13 ASX listing

Application for Official Quotation of the Securities offered pursuant to this Prospectus will be made in accordance with the timetable set out at the commencement of this Prospectus. If ASX does not grant Official Quotation of the Securities offered pursuant to this Prospectus before the expiration of 3 months after the date of issue of the Prospectus, (or such period as varied by the ASIC), the Company will not issue any Securities and will repay all application monies for the Securities within the time prescribed under the Corporations Act, without interest.

The fact that ASX may grant Official Quotation to the Securities is not to be taken in any way as an indication of the merits of the Company or the Securities now offered for subscription.

5.14 Allotment

Securities issued pursuant to the Offers will be allotted in accordance with the ASX Listing Rules and timetable set out at the commencement of this Prospectus.

Securities issued pursuant to the Shortfall Offer will be allotted on a progressive basis. Where the number of Shares issued is less than the number applied for, or where no allotment is made surplus application monies will be refunded without any interest to the Applicant as soon as practicable after the closing date of the Shortfall Offer.

Pending the allotment and issue of the Securities or payment of refunds pursuant to this Prospectus, all application monies will be held by the Company in trust for the Applicants in a separate bank account as required by the Corporations Act. The Company, however, will be entitled to retain all interest that accrues on the bank account and each Applicant waives the right to claim interest.

Holding statements for Securities issued under the Entitlement Offer will be mailed in accordance with the ASX Listing Rules and timetable set out at the commencement of this Prospectus and for Shortfall Securities issued under the Shortfall Offer as soon as practicable after their issue.

5.15 Overseas shareholders

The Entitlement Offer does not, and is not intended to, constitute an offer in any place or jurisdiction in which, or to any person to whom, it would not be lawful to make such an offer or to issue this Prospectus.

It is not practicable for the Company to comply with the securities laws of overseas jurisdictions having regard to the number of overseas Shareholders, the number and value of Shares these Shareholders would be offered and the cost of complying with regulatory requirements in each relevant jurisdiction. Accordingly, the Offer is not being extended and Shares will not be issued to Shareholders with a registered address which is outside Australia, New Zealand, Germany, Hong Kong, Singapore, Switzerland, the United Kingdom or Thailand.

The Entitlement Offer is being made in New Zealand pursuant to the Securities act (Overseas Companies) Exemption Notice 2002.

Shareholders resident in Australia, New Zealand, Germany, Hong Kong, Singapore, Switzerland, the United Kingdom or Thailand holding Shares on behalf of persons who are resident overseas are responsible for ensuring that taking up

an Entitlement under the Entitlement Offer does not breach regulations in the relevant overseas jurisdiction. Return of a duly completed Entitlement and Acceptance Form will be taken by the Company to constitute a representation that there has been no breach of those regulations.

5.16 Enquiries

Any questions concerning the Offers should be directed to Mr Trevor Harris, Company Secretary, on +61 8 9476 3000.

6. PURPOSE AND EFFECT OF THE OFFERS

6.1 Purpose of the Offer and Use of Funds

The purpose of the Entitlement Offer is to raise up to approximately \$16,250,927. No funds will be raised from the issue of the New Options.

The funds raised from the Entitlement Offer are planned to be used in accordance with the table set out below:

	\$6M Raising (minimum)	\$10M Raising	\$16.25M Raising (maximum)
	\$M	\$M	\$M
Repay/ Redeem Debt Securities/Convertible Securities ¹	3.0	3.0	3.0
Redeem outstanding Convertible Securities ²	-	-	3.20
Plant and Equipment upgrades ³	0.50	3.00	3.00
Creditor Payments ⁴	1	0.22	2.89
Costs of the Entitlement Offer ⁵	0.53	0.78	1.16
Working Capital	1.97	3.00	3.00
TOTAL	6.00	10.00	16.25

Notes:

- 1. This refers to the repayment/redemption of the Bergen Debt Security summarised at Section 9.5 of this Prospectus and the Celtic Convertible Debt Securities/Celtic Convertible Securities summarised at Section 9.4 of this Prospectus. Note that, if the minimum subscription is raised, the Company intends using its cash reserve to repay/redeem the Celtic Promissory Notes/Celtic Convertible Promissory Notes summarised at Section 9.6.
- 2. This refers to redemption of the remaining outstanding Convertible Securities (being the First Bergen Convertible Security, Second Bergen Convertible Security, Third Bergen Convertible Security, and YA Global Convertible Securities). The outstanding Convertible Securities will be redeemed if the maximum subscription (\$16.25 million) is raised under the Entitlement Offer.
- 3. The Company intends to spend a minimum of \$500,000 towards increasing the crushing circuit capacity at the Texas Silver Project, with any additional funds for plant and equipment upgrades being applied towards cost saving initiatives.
- 4. These funds will be used to reduce existing royalty and trade creditor liabilities and improve the Company's payment terms.
- 5. Refer to Section 10.7 of this Prospectus for further details relating to the estimated expenses of the Entitlement Offer.

The above table is a statement of current intentions as of the date of this Prospectus. As with any budget, intervening events and new circumstances have the potential to affect the manner in which the funds are ultimately applied. The Board reserves the right to alter the way funds are applied on this basis.

On completion of the Entitlement Offer, the Board believes the Company will have sufficient working capital to meet its objectives and expenditure obligations.

However, if only the minimum subscription is raised (\$6,000,000) under the Entitlement Offer then the Company will be reliant upon additional funding via the Off-take Agreement or the Silver Stream Agreement currently being negotiated by the Company. It is a condition of the Offers that such an agreement is signed and at least \$2,000,000 of funding is either drawn down or unconditionally available at the Closing Date under such an agreement.

6.2 Effect of the Entitlement Offer

The principal effect of the Entitlement Offer, assuming all Entitlements are accepted and no Options are exercised prior to the Record Date, will be to:

- (a) increase the cash reserves by \$15,098,367 (after deducting the estimated expenses of the Entitlement Offer) immediately after completion of the Entitlement Offer;
- (b) increase the number of Shares on issue from 1,625,092,716 as at the date of this Prospectus to 4,875,278,148 Shares following completion of the Entitlement Offer (this figure is intended to show the effect of the Entitlement Offer only and as such does not include other Shares that may be issued independent of the Entitlement Offer); and
- (c) increase the number of Options on issue from 88,839,105 as at the date of this Prospectus to 1,820,103,842 Options following completion of the Entitlement Offer (this includes New Options to be issued to Patersons (or their nominee) under the Broker Offer, but does not include any other Options that may be issued independent of the Entitlement Offer).

6.3 Pro-forma balance sheet

The unaudited balance sheet as at 1 May 2013 and the unaudited pro-forma balance sheet as at 1 May 2013 shown below have been prepared on the basis of the accounting policies normally adopted by the Company and reflect the changes to its financial position.

The pro-forma balance sheet (\$16.25 million) has been prepared assuming all Entitlements are accepted, the \$2.5 million bridge funding has been received prior to the Closing Date, and \$2 million has been draw down or is available to the Company under the Off-take Agreement or Silver Stream Agreement prior to the Closing Date. The alternate pro-forma balance sheets (\$6 million and \$10 million) have been prepared on the same basis, with a minimum of \$6 million subscription, and a \$10 million subscription. In all cases, no Options are exercised prior to the Record Date and the expenses of the Entitlement Offer are included.

The pro-forma balance sheet has been prepared to provide investors with information on the assets and liabilities of the Company and pro-forma assets and liabilities of the Company as noted below. The historical and pro-forma financial information is presented in an abbreviated form, insofar as it does not include all of the disclosures required by Australian Accounting Standards applicable to annual financial statements.

	UNAUDITED	PROFORMA	PROFORMA	PROFORMA
	1-May-13	1-May-13	1-May-13	1-May-13
		(6m raised)	(10m raised)	(16.25m raised)
CURRENT ASSETS				
Cash and Cash Equivalents ¹	\$128,699	\$8,142,968	\$11,893,674	\$17,760,894
Trade and other receivables	\$217,517	\$217,517	\$217,517	\$217,517
Prepayments	\$244,874	\$244,874	\$244,874	\$244,874
Inventory	\$6,987,013	\$6,987,013	\$6,987,013	\$6,987,013
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS	\$7,578,103	\$15,052,372	\$19,343,078	\$25,210,298
NON-CURRENT ASSETS				
Receivables	\$2,141,642	\$2,141,642	\$2,141,642	\$2,141,642
Property, plant and equipment	\$11,435,921	\$11,435,921	\$11,435,921	\$11,435,921
Finance lease asset	\$971,887	\$971,887	\$971,887	\$971,887
Investments	\$17,569	\$17,569	\$17,569	\$17,569
Mineral exploration and evaluation expenditure	\$6,295,051	\$6,295,051	\$6,295,051	\$6,295,051
Mineral development expenditure	\$5,005,513	\$5,005,513	\$5,005,513	\$5,005,513
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS	\$25,867,583	\$25,867,583	\$25,867,583	\$25,867,583
TOTAL ASSETS	\$33,445,686	\$40,919,955	\$45,210,661	\$51,077,881
CURRENT LIABILITIES				
Trade and other payables	\$5,290,611	\$2,290,611	\$2,290,611	\$2,290,611
Provisions	\$420,854	\$420,854	\$420,854	\$420,854
Convertible note loan ²	\$1,200,000	\$2,940,000	\$2,940,000	\$2,940,000
Finance lease liabilities	\$369,056	\$369,056	\$369,056	\$369,056
Financial liabilities ³	\$0	\$2,000,000	\$2,000,000	\$2,000,000
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES	\$7,280,521	\$7,480,521	\$8,020,521	\$8,020,521
NON CURRENT LIABILITIES				
Provisions	\$3,590,173	\$3,590,173	\$3,590,173	\$3,590,173
Convertible Note Loan	\$3,500,000	\$3,500,000	\$3,500,000	\$3,500,000
Finance lease liabilities	\$511,463	\$511,463	\$511,463	\$511,463
Financial Liabilities	\$87,263	\$87,263	\$87,263	\$87,263
TOTAL NON CURRENT LIABILITIES	\$7,688,899	\$7,688,899	\$7,688,899	\$7,688,899
TOTAL LIABILITIES	\$14,969,420	\$15,169,420	\$15,709,420	\$15,709,420
NET ASSETS (LIABILITIES)	\$18,476,266	\$25,750,535	\$29,501,241	\$35,368,461
EQUITY				
Contributed equity ⁴	\$101,166,188	\$109,140,457	\$112,891,163	\$118,758,383
Reserves	\$3,018,690	\$3,018,690	\$3,018,690	\$3,018,690
Accumulated losses	-\$81,635,625	-\$81,635,625	-\$81,635,625	-\$81,635,625
Current year losses	-\$4,072,987	-\$4,772,987	-\$4,772,987	-\$4,772,987

TOTAL EQUITY \$18,476,266 \$25,750,535 \$29,501,241 \$35,368,461

The Pro-Forma balance sheet includes the following adjustments:

- 1. Proceeds totalling \$15,092,195 (\$16.25 million raised), \$9,224,975 (\$10 million raised) and \$5,474,269 (\$6 million raised) respectively, from the Entitlement Offer (includes expenses of the Entitlement Offer).
- 2. The issue of the short term Bergen Debt Security, in consideration for Bergen Global paying \$700,000 (minus \$200,000 for legal expenses), with a face value of \$1,200,000, together with the issue, post 1 May 2013, of the Celtic Promissory Notes, in consideration for Celtic Capital paying \$700,000 (\$540,000 has been paid at the date of this Prospectus), with a face value of \$1,400,000. The terms of the Bergen Debt Security and Celtic Promissory Notes are summarised at Sections 9.5 and 9.6 of this Prospectus.
- 3. \$2,000,000 in funds is received or unconditionally available to the Company under either of the Off-take Agreement or Silver Stream Agreement, which is a condition of the Offers. Refer to Section 5.5 for further details.
- 4. \$2,500,000 in funds is received under short term financing currently being negotiated by the Company, which is a condition of the Offers. Refer to Section 5.5 for further details.

6.4 Effect on capital structure

The effect of the Entitlement Offer on the capital structure of the Company, assuming all Entitlements are accepted and no Options or Convertible Notes are exercised prior to the Record Date, is set out below.

Shares

	Number
Shares currently on issue	1,625,092,716
Shares offered pursuant to the Entitlement Offer	3,250,185,432
Shares to be issued to Celtic Capital ¹	301,879,218
Shares to be issued to Powerline ²	49,382,716
Total Shares on issue on completion of the Entitlement Offer	5,226,540,082

Notes:

1. These Shares comprise 141,176,471 Shares as collateral under the terms of Celtic Convertible Debt Securities, 125,000,000 Shares as collateral under the terms of Celtic Promissory Notes, 30,996,865 Shares in final satisfaction of the 3% capital raising fee for the Equity Placement Facility, 2,352,941 Shares in satisfaction of \$10,000 of legal fees under the Celtic Convertible Debt Securities, and 2,352,941 Shares in satisfaction of \$10,000 of legal fees under the Equity Placement Facility. The terms of the Celtic Convertible Debt Securities, Celtic Promissory Notes and Equity Facility Agreement are summarised at Sections 9.4, 9.6, and 9.7 respectively. The issue of these Shares are subject to Shareholder approval at the

Shareholder Meeting.

2. These Shares are to be issued in satisfaction of the \$200,000 commitment fee under the Off-take Agreement. This assumes a conversion price of 0.405 cents per Share, being 81% of the price of Shares offered under the Entitlement Issue. The actual amount of Shares issued in satisfaction of the commitment fee may vary as the above conversion price is theoretical. For further details in relation to the conversion formula of the commitment fee refer to Section 9.8 of this Prospectus. The issue of these Shares are subject to Shareholder approval at the Shareholder Meeting.

As detailed above at Section 6.1 of this Prospectus, if the Company raises sufficient funds under the Entitlement Offer, then the Company intends to redeem the Convertible Securities on issue. However, if sufficient funds are not raised, then the outstanding Convertible Securities (excluding the Celtic Convertible Securities and Celtic Convertible Promissory Notes) may be converted into Shares, and the Company may need to draw down on the Equity Placement Facility (subject to Shareholder approval). The potential effect on the Capital Structure is set out below:

	Number
Total Shares on issue on completion of the Entitlement Offer (assuming maximum subscription) and Shareholder approval of the issue of a total of 351,261,934 Shares to Celtic Capital and Powerline,	5,226,540,082
Shares to be issued to Bergen Global on conversion of the First Bergen Global Convertible Security ¹	236,111,111
Shares to be issued to YA Global on conversion of the YA Global Convertible Security ¹	247,222,222
Shares to be issued to Bergen Global on conversion of the Second Bergen Global Convertible Security ²	61,728,395
Shares to be issued to Bergen Global on conversion of the Third Bergen Global Convertible Security ²	185,185,185
Maximum amount of Shares that may be issued under the Equity Placement Facility ³	2,000,000,000
Potential amount of Shares on issue after conversion of the above Convertible Securities and maximum drawdown on the Equity Placement Facility ⁴	7,956,786,995

Notes:

- 1. This assumes a conversion price of \$0.0045, being a 90% discount to the price of Shares being offered under the Entitlement Offer.
- 2. This assumes a conversion price of \$0.00405, being an 81% discount to the price of Shares being offered under the Entitlement Offer.
- 3. This assumes a subscription price of \$0.005, being the minimum price at which the Company may require the Company to subscribe for Shares under the Equity Placement Facility.
- 4. Due to the fact that the Company's Shares have been suspended from trade since 8 April 2013, the above conversion prices are based off the

appropriate discounts to a theoretical market price of \$0.005. As such, the actual amount of Shares issued will likely vary. The above table assumes the Celtic Convertible Securities are redeemed out of the funds raised from the Entitlement Offer and are not converted.

Options

	Number
Options currently on issue:	
Quoted exercisable at \$0.06 on or before 14 May 2015	60,839,105
Unquoted exercisable at \$0.11 on or before 31 March 2015	1,000,000
Unquoted exercisable at \$0.15 on or before 31 August 2015	1,000,000
Unquoted exercisable at \$0.0496 on or before 26 February 2016 ¹	26,000,000
Total	88,839,105
New Options offered pursuant to the Entitlement Offer (Quoted exercisable at \$0.01 on or before 31 July 2015)	1,625,092,716
Unlisted Options to be issued Bergen Global (subject to Shareholder approval) after the Record Date exercisable at the VWAP of Shares on the date immediately prior to the issue date and expiring 60 months after the date of issue ²	88,000,000
Listed New Options to be issued to Celtic Capital (or its nominee) under the Celtic Offer ³	36,000,000
Listed New Options to be granted to Patersons (or its nominees) under the Broker Offer ⁴	195,011,126
Total Options on issue on completion of the Offers	2,032,942,947

Notes:

- 1. Upon completion of the Entitlement Offer, the exercise price of \$0.0496 attaching to these Options will be reduced in accordance with the formula set out in ASX Listing Rule 6.22.2.
- 2. These Options are to be issued to Bergen Global pursuant to terms of the Third Bergen Global Convertible Security summarised at Section 9.3 of this Prospectus. The issue of these Options are subject to Shareholder approval to be obtained at the Shareholder Meeting.
- 3. These New Options are to be issued to Celtic Capital as fees under the terms of the Celtic Convertible Debt Securities summarised at Section 9.4 of this Prospectus. Refer to Section 5.4 of this Prospectus for more details in relation to the Celtic Offer.
- 4. This assumes the Entitlement Offer is fully subscribed. These New Options will be issued to Patersons (or its nominees) on completion of the Entitlement Offer and will total 6% of the number of Shares issued under the Entitlement Offer. Refer to Section 9.9 of this Prospectus for details of the mandate agreement executed between the Company and Patersons. Refer to Section 5.3 of this Prospectus for more details in relation to the Broker Offer.

Performance Rights

	Number
Performance Rights currently on issue:	
Expiring on 29 November 2015	166,666
Performance Rights to be issued to Dr Paul D'Sylva, Mr Tim Morrison, Mr Michael Reed and Mr Trevor Harris ¹	Up to 505,215,736
Performance Rights offered under the Entitlement Offer	Nil
Total Performance Rights on issue on completion of the Entitlement Offer	Up to 505,382,402

Notes:

1. The issue of these Performance Rights are subject to Shareholder approval at the Shareholder meeting. Each of the above persons is to be granted that number of Performance Rights equal to 2.5% of the total number of Shares on issue on Completion of the Entitlement Offer (excluding any Shares issued to Powerline prior to Completion in satisfaction of the commitment fee under the Off-take Agreement). The table assumes the Entitlement Offer is fully subscribed, and 176,879,218 Shares are issued to Celtic Capital before the Entitlement Offer is completed, in which case, if approved by Shareholders, each of the above persons will be granted 126,303,934 Performance Rights. The Performance Rights are subject to performance hurdles, including that 50% convert into Shares (on a 1:1 basis) on completion of the Rights Issue. Further detail in relation to the issue of these Performance Rights is set out at Section 10.4 of this Prospectus.

Convertible Securities

	Number
Convertible Securities currently on issue:	
First Bergen Global Convertible Security (\$1,062,500 face value, maturing on or before 24 February 2015)	1
YA Global Convertible Security (\$1,112,500 face value, maturing on or before 24 February 2015)	1
Total	2
Second Bergen Global Convertible Security (\$250,000 face value, maturing on or before 26 March 2015) to be issued before completion of the Entitlement Offer ¹	1
Third Bergen Global Convertible Security (\$750,000 face value, maturing on or before 26 March 2015) to be issued before completion of the Entitlement Offer ²	1
Celtic Convertible Securities (each with a face value of \$1, maturing on or before 11 October 2013) to be issued before completion of the Entitlement Offer ³	1,800,000
Celtic Convertible Promissory Notes (each with a face value of \$1, maturing on or before 5 October 2013) to be issued before completion of the Entitlement Offer ⁴	1,400,000

Convertible Securities offered under Entitlement Offer	Nil
Total Convertible Securities on issue on completion of Entitlement Offer	3,200,004

Notes:

- 1. The issue of the Second Bergen Global Convertible Security is conditional upon Shareholder approval at the Shareholder Meeting. If Shareholder approval is obtained, the Company will issue the Second Bergen Global Convertible Security as a replacement to the \$250,000 Bergen Convertible Debt Security.
- 2. The issue of the Third Bergen Global Convertible Security is conditional upon Shareholder approval at Shareholder Meeting. If Shareholder approval is obtained, the Company will issue the Second Bergen Global Convertible Security as a replacement to the \$750,000 Bergen Convertible Debt Security.
- 3. The issue of the Celtic Convertible Securities are conditional upon Shareholder approval at the Shareholder Meeting. If Shareholder approval is obtained, the Company will issue the Celtic Convertible Securities as a replacement to the 1,800,000 Celtic Convertible Debt Securities.
- 4. The issue of the Celtic Convertible Promissory Notes are conditional upon Shareholder approval at the Shareholder Meeting. If Shareholder approval is obtained, the Company will issue the Celtic Convertible Promissory Notes as a replacement to the Celtic Promissory Notes.

Debt Securities

	Number
Debt Securities currently on issue:	
\$250,000 Bergen Convertible Debt Security ¹	1
\$750,000 Bergen Convertible Debt Security ²	1
Celtic Convertible Debt Securities (each with a face value of \$1.00, maturing on or before 11 October 2013) ³	1,800,000
Debt Security issued to Bergen Global (face value of \$1,200,000 repayable on or before 15 August 2013)	1
Celtic Convertible Promissory Notes (each with a face value of \$1.00, maturing on or before 5 October 2013) 4	1,400,000
Total	3,200,003
Debt Securities offered under Entitlement Offer	Nil
Total Debt Securities on issue on completion of the Entitlement Offer	1

Notes:

1. Subject to Shareholder approval being obtained, the \$250,000 Bergen Convertible Debt Security will be replaced by the issue of the Second Bergen Global Convertible Security.

- 2. Subject to Shareholder approval being obtained, the \$750,000 Bergen Convertible Debt Security will be replaced by the issue of the Third Bergen Global Convertible Security.
- 3. Subject to Shareholder approval being obtained, the Celtic Convertible Debt Securities will be replaced by the issue of the Celtic Convertible Securities.
- 4. Subject to Shareholder approval being obtained, the Celtic Promissory Notes will be replaced by the issue of the Celtic Convertible Promissory Notes.

The capital structure on a fully diluted basis as at the date of this Prospectus is 2,197,431,820 (this does not include any of the Debt Securities that subject to Shareholder approval will become Convertible Securities) Shares and on completion of the Entitlement Offer (assuming all Entitlements are accepted and no Options or Convertible Securities are exercised prior to the Record Date) will be 8,638,426,020 Shares (this includes the Celtic Convertible Securities, Celtic Convertible Promissory Notes, Second Bergen Convertible Security and Third Bergen Convertible Security that are to be issued prior to completion of the Entitlement Offer, subject to Shareholder approval).

Due to the fact that the Company's Shares have been suspended from trade since 8 April 2013, the fully diluted capital structure above is based upon a theoretical conversion price for the Convertible Securities. The theoretical conversion price for each Convertible Security, and Powerline commitment fee, has been calculated by applying the appropriate discounts to the price of Shares being offered under this Prospectus (being \$0.005). As such, the actual amount of Shares to be issued upon conversion of the Convertible Securities and Powerline commitment fee may vary. For further details in relation to conversion price of the Convertible Securities and Powerline commitment fee refer to Section 9 of this Prospectus.

No Shares or Options on issue are subject to escrow restrictions, either voluntary or ASX imposed.

6.5 Details of substantial holders

Based on publicly available information as at 17 May 2013, those persons which (together with their associates) have a relevant interest in 5% or more of the Shares on issue are set out below:

Shareholder	Shares	%
JP Morgan Nominees Australia Ltd	261,019,747	16.06%

In the event all Entitlements are accepted there will be no change to the substantial holders on completion of the Entitlement Offer.

7. RIGHTS AND LIABILITIES ATTACHING TO SECURITIES

7.1 Shares

The following is a summary of the more significant rights and liabilities attaching to Shares being offered pursuant to this Prospectus. This summary is not exhaustive and does not constitute a definitive statement of the rights and liabilities of Shareholders. To obtain such a statement, persons should seek independent legal advice.

Full details of the rights and liabilities attaching to Shares are set out in the Constitution, a copy of which is available for inspection at the Company's registered office during normal business hours.

(a) General meetings

Shareholders are entitled to be present in person, or by proxy, attorney or representative to attend and vote at general meetings of the Company.

Shareholders may requisition meetings in accordance with Section 249D of the Corporations Act and the Constitution of the Company.

(b) Voting rights

Subject to any rights or restrictions for the time being attached to any class or classes of shares, at general meetings of shareholders or classes of shareholders:

- (i) each Shareholder entitled to vote may vote in person or by proxy, attorney or representative;
- (ii) on a show of hands, every person present who is a Shareholder or a proxy, attorney or representative of a Shareholder has one vote; and
- (iii) on a poll, every person present who is a Shareholder or a proxy, attorney or representative of a Shareholder shall, in respect of each fully paid Share held by him, or in respect of which he is appointed a proxy, attorney or representative, have one vote for each Share held, but in respect of partly paid shares shall have such number of votes as bears the same proportion to the total of such Shares registered in the Shareholder's name as the amount paid (not credited) bears to the total amounts paid and payable (excluding amounts credited).

(c) **Dividend rights**

Subject to the rights of any preference Shareholders and to the rights of the holders of any shares created or raised under any special arrangement as to dividend, the Directors may from time to time declare a dividend to be paid to the Shareholders entitled to the dividend which shall be payable on all Shares according to the proportion that the amount paid (not credited) is of the total amounts paid and payable (excluding amounts credited) in respect of such Shares.

The Directors may from time to time pay to the Shareholders any interim dividends as they may determine. No dividend shall carry interest as against the Company. The Directors may set aside out of the profits of the Company any amounts that they may determine as reserves, to be applied at the discretion of the Directors, for any purpose for which the profits of the Company may be properly applied.

Subject to the ASX Listing Rules and the Corporations Act, the Company may, by resolution of the Directors, implement a dividend reinvestment plan on such terms and conditions as the Directors think fit and which provides for any dividend which the Directors may declare from time to time payable on Shares which are participating Shares in the dividend reinvestment plan, less any amount which the Company shall either pursuant to the Constitution or any law be entitled or obliged to retain, be applied by the Company to the payment of the subscription price of Shares.

(d) Winding-up

If the Company is wound up, the liquidator may, with the authority of a special resolution, divide among the Shareholders in kind the whole or any part of the property of the Company, and may for that purpose set such value as he considers fair upon any property to be so divided, and may determine how the division is to be carried out as between the Shareholders or different classes of Shareholders.

The liquidator may, with the authority of a special resolution, vest the whole or any part of any such property in trustees upon such trusts for the benefit of the contributories as the liquidator thinks fit, but so that no Shareholder is compelled to accept any shares or other securities in respect of which there is any liability.

(e) Shareholder liability

As the Shares issued will be fully paid shares, they will not be subject to any calls for money by the Directors and will therefore not become liable for forfeiture.

(f) Transfer of shares

Generally, shares in the Company are freely transferable, subject to formal requirements, the registration of the transfer not resulting in a contravention of or failure to observe the provisions of a law of Australia and the transfer not being in breach of the Corporations Act and the ASX Listing Rules.

(g) Future increase in capital

The allotment and issue of any new Shares is under the control of the Directors of the Company. Subject to restrictions on the issue or grant of Securities contained in the ASX Listing Rules, the Constitution and the Corporations Act (and without affecting any special right previously conferred on the holder of an existing share or class of shares), the Directors may issue Shares as they shall, in their absolute discretion, determine.

(h) Variation of rights

Under Section 246B of the Corporations Act, the Company may, with the sanction of a special resolution passed at a meeting of Shareholders vary or abrogate the rights attaching to shares.

If at any time the share capital is divided into different classes of shares, the rights attached to any class (unless otherwise provided by the terms of issue of the shares of that class), whether or not the Company is being wound up, may be varied or abrogated with the consent in writing of the holders of three quarters of the issued shares of that class, or if authorised by a special resolution passed at a separate meeting of the holders of the shares of that class.

(i) Alteration of constitution

In accordance with the Corporations Act, the Constitution can only be amended by a special resolution passed by at least three quarters of Shareholders present and voting at the general meeting. In addition, at least 28 days written notice specifying the intention to propose the resolution as a special resolution must be given.

7.2 New Options

(a) Entitlement

Each New Option entitles the holder to subscribe for one Share upon exercise of the New Option.

(b) Exercise Price

Subject to paragraph (j), the amount payable upon exercise of each New Option will be \$0.01 (Exercise Price).

(c) Expiry Date

Each New Option will expire at 5.00pm (WST) on 31 July 2015 (**Expiry Date**). A New Option not exercised before the Expiry Date will automatically lapse on the Expiry Date.

(d) Exercise Period

The New Options are exercisable at any time on or prior to the Expiry Date (Exercise Period).

(e) Notice of Exercise

The New Options may be exercised during the Exercise Period by notice in writing to the Company in the manner specified on the Option certificate (**Notice of Exercise**) and payment of the Exercise Price for each New Option being exercised in Australian currency by electronic funds transfer or other means of payment acceptable to the Company.

(f) Exercise Date

A Notice of Exercise is only effective on and from the later of the date of receipt of the Notice of Exercise and the date of receipt of the payment

of the Exercise Price for each New Option being exercised in cleared funds (Exercise Date).

(g) Timing of issue of Shares on exercise

Within 15 Business Days after the later of the following:

- (i) the Exercise Date; and
- (ii) when excluded information in respect to the Company (as defined in Section 708A(7) of the Corporations Act) (if any) ceases to be excluded information,

but in any case no later than 20 Business Days after the Exercise Date, the Company will:

- (iii) allot and issue the number of Shares required under these terms and conditions in respect of the number of New Options specified in the Notice of Exercise and for which cleared funds have been received by the Company;
- (iv) if required, give ASX a notice that complies with Section 708A(5)(e) of the Corporations Act, or, if the Company is unable to issue such a notice, lodge with ASIC a prospectus prepared in accordance with the Corporations Act and do all such things necessary to satisfy Section 708A(11) of the Corporations Act to ensure that an offer for sale of the Shares does not require disclosure to investors; and
- (v) if admitted to the official list of ASX at the time, apply for official quotation on ASX of Shares issued pursuant to the exercise of the New Options.

If a notice delivered under (iv) for any reason is not effective to ensure that an offer for sale of the Shares does not require disclosure to investors, the Company must, no later than 20 Business Days after becoming aware of such notice being ineffective, lodge with ASIC a prospectus prepared in accordance with the Corporations Act and do all such things necessary to satisfy Section 708A(11) of the Corporations Act to ensure that an offer for sale of the Shares does not require disclosure to investors.

(h) Shares issued on exercise

Shares issued on exercise of the New Options rank equally with the then issued shares of the Company.

(i) Quotation of Shares issued on exercise

If admitted to the official list of ASX at the time, application will be made by the Company to ASX for quotation of the Shares issued upon the exercise of the New Options.

(j) Reconstruction of capital

If at any time the issued capital of the Company is reconstructed, all rights of an Optionholder are to be changed in a manner consistent

with the Corporations Act and the ASX Listing Rules at the time of the reconstruction.

(k) Participation in new issues

There are no participation rights or entitlements inherent in the New Options and holders will not be entitled to participate in new issues of capital offered to Shareholders during the currency of the New Options without exercising the New Options.

(I) Change in exercise price

A New Option does not confer the right to a change in Exercise Price or a change in the number of underlying securities over which the New Option can be exercised.

(m) Quoted

The Company will apply for quotation of the Options on ASX.

(n) Transferability

The New Options are transferable subject to any restriction or escrow arrangements imposed by ASX or under applicable Australian securities laws.

8. RISK FACTORS

8.1 Introduction

The Securities offered under this Prospectus are considered highly speculative. An investment in the Company is not risk free and the Directors strongly recommend potential investors to consider the risk factors described below, together with information contained elsewhere in this Prospectus and to consult their professional advisers before deciding whether to apply for Securities pursuant to this Prospectus.

There are specific risks which relate directly to the Company's business. In addition, there are other general risks, many of which are largely beyond the control of the Company and the Directors. The risks identified in this section, or other risk factors, may have a material impact on the financial performance of the Company and the market price of the Securities.

The following is not intended to be an exhaustive list of the risk factors to which the Company is exposed.

8.2 Key Risks

Section 3.3 of this Prospectus summarises the key risks that apply to the Company.

8.3 Company specific

(a) Mineral Resource Estimates

Mineral Resource estimates are expressions of judgement based on knowledge, experience and industry practice. Estimates which were valid when originally calculated may alter significantly when new information or techniques become available. In addition, by their very nature, resource estimates are imprecise and depend to some extent on interpretations, which may prove to be inaccurate. As further information becomes available through additional fieldwork and analysis, the estimates are likely to change. This may result in alterations to development and mining plans which may, in turn, adversely affect the Company's operations.

8.4 Industry specific

(a) **Environmental**

The operations and proposed activities of the Company are subject to State and Federal laws and regulations concerning the environment. As with most exploration projects and mining operations, the Company's activities are expected to have an impact on the environment. It is the Company's intention to conduct its activities to the highest standard of environmental obligation, including compliance with all environmental laws.

Mining operations have inherent risks and liabilities associated with safety and damage to the environment and the disposal of waste products occurring as a result of mineral exploration and production. The occurrence of any such safety or environmental incident could delay production or increase production costs. Events, such as

unpredictable rainfall or bushfires may impact on the Company's ongoing compliance with environmental legislation, regulations and licences. Significant liabilities could be imposed on the Company for damages, clean up costs or penalties in the event of certain discharges into the environment, environmental damage caused by previous operations or non-compliance with environmental laws or regulations.

The disposal of mining and process waste and mine water discharge are under constant legislative scrutiny and regulation. There is a risk that environmental laws and regulations become more onerous making the Company's operations more expensive.

Approvals are required for land clearing and for ground disturbing activities. Delays in obtaining such approvals can result in the delay to anticipated exploration programmes or mining activities.

(b) Environmental Bonds

The Company's tenements are subject to unconditional performance bonds to cover the anticipated cost of rehabilitation of historical mining on the tenements. The bonds may be increased in the future, either in relation to previous mining or new mining activities, which the Company would need to fund. In addition, there can be no assurance given that the actual rehabilitation costs incurred will not exceed the amount of the bonds.

(c) Native Title Risks

Both the Native Title Act 1993 (Cth), related State Native Title legislation and Aboriginal Land Rights and Aboriginal Heritage legislation may affect the Company's ability to gain access to prospective exploration areas or obtain production titles.

Compensatory obligations may be necessary in settling Native Title claims if lodged over any tenements acquired by the Company. The existence of outstanding registered Native Title claims means that the grant of a tenement in respect of a particular tenement application may be significantly delayed or thwarted pending resolution of future act procedures in the Native Title Act. The level of impact of these matters will depend, in part, on the location and status of the tenements acquired by the Company. At this stage it is not possible to quantify the impact (if any) which these developments may have on the operations of the Company.

(d) Regulatory Risks

The Company's mining operations and exploration and development activities are subject to extensive laws and regulations relating to numerous matters including resource licence consent, conditions including environmental compliance and rehabilitation, taxation, employee relations, health and worker safety, waste disposal, protection of the environment, native title and heritage matters, protection of endangered and protected species and other matters. The Company requires permits from regulatory authorities to authorise the Company's operations. These permits relate to exploration, development, production and rehabilitation activities.

Obtaining necessary permits can be a time consuming process and there is a risk that Company will not obtain these permits on acceptable terms, in a timely manner or at all. The costs and delays associated with obtaining necessary permits and complying with these permits and applicable laws and regulations could materially delay or restrict the Company from proceeding with the development of a project or the operation or further development of a mine. Any failure to comply with applicable laws and regulations or permits, even if inadvertent, could result in material fines, penalties or other liabilities. In extreme cases, failure could result in suspension of the Company's activities or forfeiture of one or more of the tenements.

(e) Exploration

The mineral tenements of the Company are at various stages of exploration, and potential investors should understand that mineral exploration and development are high-risk undertakings.

There can be no assurance that exploration of these tenements, or any other tenements that may be acquired in the future, will result in the discovery of an economic ore deposit. Even if an apparently viable deposit is identified, there is no guarantee that it can be economically exploited.

The future exploration activities of the Company may be affected by a range of factors including geological conditions, limitations on activities due to seasonal weather patterns, unanticipated operational and technical difficulties, industrial and environmental accidents, native title process, changing government regulations and many other factors beyond the control of the Company.

The success of the Company will also depend upon the Company having access to sufficient development capital, being able to maintain title to its Tenements and obtaining all required approvals for its activities. In the event that exploration programmes prove to be unsuccessful this could lead to a diminution in the value of the Tenements, a reduction in the case reserves of the Company and possible relinquishment of the Tenements.

The exploration costs of the Company are based on certain assumptions with respect to the method and timing of exploration. By their nature, these estimates and assumptions are subject to significant uncertainties and, accordingly, the actual costs may materially differ from these estimates and assumptions. Accordingly, no assurance can be given that the cost estimates and the underlying assumptions will be realised in practice, which may materially and adversely affect the Company's viability.

(f) Mine development

Possible future development of further mining operations at any of the Company's projects is dependent on a number of factors including, but not limited to, the acquisition and/or delineation of economically recoverable mineralisation, favourable geological conditions, receiving the necessary approvals from all relevant authorities and parties, seasonal weather patterns, unanticipated technical and operational difficulties encountered in extraction and production activities,

mechanical failure of operating plant and equipment, shortages or increases in the price of consumables, spare parts and plant and equipment, cost overruns, access to the required level of funding and contracting risk from third parties providing essential services.

If the Company commences production from other locations, its operations may be disrupted by a variety of risks and hazards which are beyond its control, including environmental hazards, industrial accidents, technical failures, labour disputes, unusual or unexpected rock formations, flooding and extended interruptions due to inclement of hazardous weather conditions and fires, explosions or accidents. No assurance can be given that the Company will achieve commercial viability through the development or mining of its projects and treatment of ore.

(g) Exploration and Mining Titles

The ability of the Company to carry out successful exploration and mining activities will depend on the ability to maintain or obtain tenure to mining titles. The maintenance or issue of any such titles must be in accordance with the laws of the relevant jurisdiction and in particular, the relevant mining legislation. Conditions imposed by such legislation must also be complied with. No guarantee can be given that tenures will be maintained or granted, or if they are maintained or granted, that the Company will be in a position to comply with all conditions that are imposed or that they will not be plainted by third parties.

Although the Company has investigated title to all of its tenements the Company cannot give any assurance that title to such tenements will not be challenged or impugned. The tenements may be subject to prior unregistered agreements or transfers or title may be affected by undetected defects or native title claims.

(h) **Tenure and access**

Mining and exploration tenements are subject to periodic renewal. There is no guarantee that current or future tenements or future applications for production tenements will be approved.

Tenements are subject to the applicable mining acts and regulations in Queensland. The renewal of the term of a granted tenement is also subject to the discretion of the relevant Minister. Renewal conditions may include increased expenditure and work commitments or compulsory relinquishment of areas of the tenements comprising the Company's projects. The imposition of new conditions or the inability to meet those conditions may adversely affect the operations, financial position and/or performance of the Company.

8.5 General risks

(a) **Economic**

General economic conditions, movements in interest and inflation rates and currency exchange rates may have an adverse effect on the Company's exploration, development and production activities, as well as on its ability to fund those activities.

(b) Market conditions

Share market conditions may affect the value of the Company's quoted securities regardless of the Company's operating performance. Share market conditions are affected by many factors such as:

- general economic outlook;
- introduction of tax reform or other new legislation;
- interest rates and inflation rates:
- changes in investor sentiment toward particular market sectors;
- the demand for, and supply of, capital; and
- terrorism or other hostilities.

The market price of securities can fall as well as rise and may be subject to varied and unpredictable influences on the market for equities in general and resource exploration stocks in particular. Neither the Company nor the Directors warrant the future performance of the Company or any return on an investment in the Company.

(c) Additional requirements for capital

The Company's capital requirements depend on numerous factors. Depending on the Company's ability to generate income from its operations, the Company may require further financing in addition to amounts raised under the Entitlement Offer. Any additional equity financing will dilute shareholdings, and debt financing, if available, may involve restrictions on financing and operating activities. If the Company is unable to obtain additional financing as needed, it may be required to reduce the scope of its operations and scale back its exploration programmes as the case may be. There is however no guarantee that the Company will be able to secure any additional funding or be able to secure funding on terms favourable to the Company.

(d) Taxation

The acquisition and disposal of Shares will have tax consequences, which will differ depending on the individual financial affairs of each investor. All potential investors in the Company are urged to obtain independent financial advice about the consequences of acquiring Shares from a taxation viewpoint and generally.

To the maximum extent permitted by law, the Company, its officers and each of their respective advisors accept no liability and responsibility with respect to the taxation consequences of subscribing for Shares under this Prospectus.

(e) Force Majeure

The Company's projects now or in the future may be adversely affected by risks outside the control of the Company including labour unrest, civil disorder, war, subversive activities or sabotage, fires, floods, explosions or other catastrophes, epidemics or quarantine restrictions.

(f) Government policy changes

Adverse changes in government policies or legislation may affect ownership of mineral interests, taxation, royalties, land access, labour relations, and mining and exploration activities of the Company. It is possible that the current system of exploration and mine permitting in Western Australia may change, resulting in impairment of rights and possibly expropriation of the Company's properties without adequate compensation.

8.6 Speculative investment

The above list of risk factors ought not to be taken as exhaustive of the risks faced by the Company or by investors in the Company. The above factors, and others not specifically referred to above, may in the future materially affect the financial performance of the Company and the value of the Securities offered under this Prospectus

Therefore, the Securities to be issued pursuant to this Prospectus carry no guarantee with respect to the payment of dividends, returns of capital or the market value of those Securities.

Potential investors should consider that the investment in the Company is speculative and should consult their professional advisers before deciding whether to apply for Securities pursuant to this Prospectus.

9. MATERIAL CONTRACTS

9.1 First Bergen Global Convertible Security and YA Global Convertible Security

The terms and conditions of each of the First Bergen Global Convertible Security and the YA Global Convertible Security are as follows:

Term	Details
Subscription Amount	\$1,250,000 each
Face Value	Initially: \$1,312,500 each At date of this Prospectus: Bergen Global: \$1,062,500; YA Global: \$1,112,500.
Maturity Date	24 February 2015
Interest	Nil, but interest is payable on a default event occurring at the interest rate prescribed by Section 101 of the Civil Procedure Act 2005 (NSW) (as at the date of this Prospectus, the prescribed rate is ~ 6% above the cash rate last published by the Reserve Bank of Australia)
Secured / Unsecured	The First Bergen Global Convertible Security was initially unsecured, but is now secured (as a past advance) by the general security deed granted to Bergen Global on 26 March 2013 (General Security Deed). The YA Global Convertible Note is not secured.
Conversion	Each convertible security is convertible in whole or part, at the holder's election, before the maturity date, conditional on approval under ASX Listing Rule 7.1 being obtained where necessary to avoid a breach of the ASX Listing Rules. Any unconverted part of the Face Value must be converted at the maturity date. If the Company has not obtained any necessary Shareholder approval by the required issue date, the Company must pay the holder 110% of the face value that was to be converted in lieu of converting that amount into Shares.
	Where the issue of Share upon conversion would result in the holder having a relevant interest in Shares in excess of 19.99%, the Company must not effect such conversion by issuance of Shares but must instead pay to the holder the amount equal to the conversion amount that would increase the holder's relevant interest in Shares above 19.99%.
Conversion Price	 At the holder's election, either: 90% of one daily VWAP per Share during the twenty consecutive actual trading days immediately prior to the date a conversion notice is given to the Company; or 135% of the average of the daily VWAPs per Share for the 10 consecutive actual trading days immediately prior to prior to 24 February 2013 (being 0.467 cents), up to a maximum face value amount of \$1,250,000.
Redemption	The Company does not have a right under the convertible securities to redeem the First Bergen Global Convertible Security

	or the YA Global Convertible Security before the Maturity Date. However, Bergen and YA Global have subsequently agreed to early redemption if requested by the Company following completion of the Rights Issue.
Transferability	Each convertible security is freely transferrable and assignable.
Options	In lieu of a capital raising fee for providing the convertible security, the Company must grant (and has granted), for nil cash consideration, 13,000,000 unlisted Options (exercisable at 4.96 cents each, expiring 26 February 2016) to each of Bergen Global and YA Global.
Collateral Shares	The Company has issued 12,400,000 Shares for nil cash consideration as collateral for the convertible security to each of Bergen Global and YA Global. As a default event has occurred, Bergen Global and YA Global are entitled to keep these collateral Shares without further payment.
No Participation or Voting Rights	There are no participation rights or entitlements inherent in the convertible securities and holders will not be entitled to participate in new issues of capital offered to Shareholders during the currency of the convertible security without converting the convertible notes. The convertible notes do not carry any voting rights at Shareholder meetings.
Governing Law	New South Wales

9.2 Second Bergen Global Convertible Security

The terms and conditions of the \$250,000 Bergen Convertible Debt Security and the Second Bergen Global Convertible Security are as follows.

Term	Details
Subscription Amount	\$250,000
Face Value	\$250,000
Face Value on Change of Control	The face value of the convertible security will increase by \$250,000 if, at any time:
	a person (other than the holder), either directly or indirectly, acquires a relevant interest in more than 15% of Shares in the Company or Company's subsidiaries;
	a person (other than the holder), either directly or indirectly, acquires the whole or a material part of the Company's business or property;
	a person acquires control (within the meaning of Section 50AA of the Corporations Act) of the Company or any subsidiary;
	 a person acquires or merges with the Company or subsidiary;
	a person is in a position of control of the Company's Board; or
	there is an appointment, removal, or resignation of a Director of the Company.
Maturity Date	26 March 2015

	
Interest	Nil, but a interest is payable on a default event occurring at the interest rate prescribed by Section 101 of the Civil Procedure Act 2005 (NSW) (as at the date of this Prospectus, the prescribed rate is ~6% above the cash rate last published by the Reserve Bank of Australia).
Secured	Secured under the General Security Deed granted on 26 March 2013.
Conversion	Conditional on Shareholder approval being obtained where necessary to avoid a breach of the ASX Listing Rules.
	Any unconverted part of the Face Value must be converted at the maturity date.
	If the Company has not obtained any necessary Shareholder approval by the required issue date, the Company must pay the holder the 119% of the face value that would of otherwise been converted into Shares.
	Where the issue of Shares upon conversion would result in the holder having a relevant interest in Shares in excess of 19.99%, the Company must not effect such conversion by issuance of Shares but must instead pay to the holder the amount equal to the conversion amount that would increase the holder's relevant interest in Shares above 19.99%.
Conversion Price	At the holder's election, either:
	 81% of the average of three daily VWAPs per Share (as selected by the Investor in its sole discretion) during the 20 consecutive trading days immediately prior to the date a conversion notice is given to the Company; or the average of two daily VWAPs per Share for the 2 consecutive trading days immediately prior to 26
	March 2013 (being 0.0153 cents).
Redemption	The Company does not have a right to repay the convertible security before the maturity date. However, Bergen Global has agreed to early redemption if requested by the Company following completion of the Rights Issue.
Default Events	Each convertible security is subject to default events relating to:
	insolvency and appointment of administrators:
	 breach by the Company of any obligations owed to the holder;
	 the Company Group suspending or selling a substantial part of its business or assets;
	a reduction of capital;
	removal of the Company from the ASX;
	the holder's Shares not being quoted on ASX,
	 a security interest over the Company Group being enforced;
	 the Company Group being in default under a debt agreement;
	 the Company not obtaining shareholder approval so that the Company may issue Shares upon conversion;
	a change of control in respect of the Company

	occurring; or
	a material adverse event occurring in respect of the Company's business or price of Shares.
	Upon an event of default occurring, the holder may declare that any outstanding face value, or any other amount payable by the Company to the holder, immediately becomes due and payable.
Negative Covenants	Under the terms of issue of the convertible security, the Company must not:
	 issue or sell any debt, equity or equity linked securities that are convertible into, or have a right to receive, Shares at a conversion, exercise or exchange rate or other price based on (or varying with) the trading price of Shares or which can be reset at a future date in specific circumstances. This is deemed to include an equity line of credit, convertible security or loan, or similar debt arrangement, excluding the YA Global Convertible Security and the Celtic Capital Convertible Notes, but does not prohibit rights issues, shareholder purchase plans, convertible securities, or equity issuances, each at a fixed price per Share. issue or sell any securities in a capital or debt raising transaction which grant the investor the right to receive additional securities upon future transactions
	of the Company on terms more favourable than those granted to that investor in such first transaction;
	 without the consent of holder, dispose of all or part of its assets unless in the ordinary course of business or, if at least \$400,000 is raised from the sale, at least 50% of net proceeds are applied towards repayment of the convertible security;
	without the consent of the holder, make an announcement in relation to the holder;
	reduce its Share capital;
	 undertake a consolidation of its Share capital; incur indebtedness that is senior to, or pari passu with, the Company's obligations under this convertible security in right of payment;
	 change the nature of the Company's business; make an application under Section 411 of the
	 Corporations Act; or list on any other stock exchange other than ASX and the Deutsche Bourse without the holders consent.
No Participation or Voting Rights	There are no participation rights or entitlements inherent in the convertible security and the holder will not be entitled to participate in new issues of capital offered to Shareholders during the currency of the convertible security without converting the convertible security.
Governing Law	New South Wales

9.3 Third Bergen Global Convertible Security

The terms and conditions of the \$750,000 Bergen Convertible Debt Security and the Third Bergen Global Convertible Security are as follows.

Term	Details
Subscription Amount	Nil, the convertible security was issued in consideration of the holder waiving obligations owed by the Company under the Bergen Global Convertible Securities Agreement.
Face Value	\$750,000
Maturity Date	26 March 2015
Interest	Nil, but interest is payable on a default event occurring at the interest rate prescribed by Section 101 of the Civil Procedure Act 2005 (NSW) (as at the date of this Prospectus, the prescribed rate is ~ 6% above the cash rate last published by the Reserve Bank of Australia)
Secured	Secured pursuant to the General Security Deed.
Conversion	As per the Second Bergen Global Convertible Security
Conversion Price	As per the Second Bergen Global Convertible Security
Redemption	As per the Second Bergen Global Convertible Security
Default Events	As per the Second Bergen Global Convertible Security
Negative Covenants	As per the Second Bergen Global Convertible Security. In addition, until 26 March 2018, Bergen has a first right of refusal to provide any debt financing (including by issuing debentures, convertible notes, instruments convertible into shares or debentures, or options) to the AYN Group, for an amount greater than \$500,000 or that involves the grant of security over any of the AYN Group's asset.
Options	The Company must grant, for nil cash consideration, 88,000,000 unlisted Options exercisable at the VWAP of Shares on the date immediately prior to the issue date and expiring 60 months after the date of issue. These options must be issued by no later than 31 July 2013.
No Participation or Voting Rights	There are no participation rights or entitlements inherent in the convertible security and the holder will not be entitled to participate in new issues of capital offered to Shareholders during the currency of the convertible security without converting the convertible security.
Governing Law	New South Wales

9.4 Celtic Convertible Debt Securities / Celtic Convertible Securities

The terms and conditions of the Celtic Convertible Debt Securities / Celtic Convertible Securities are as follows.

Term	Details
Subscription Amount	\$1,200,000
Face Value	\$1.00 per convertible note (a total of \$1,800,000)

Maturity Date	120 business days after issue (being 11 October 2013)
Interest	Nil, but default interest of 15% pa is payable on a default event or a failure by the Company to convert the convertible notes as and when required.
Unsecured	The convertible notes are unsecured, but are to rank in priority to all other unsecured creditors of the Company.
Conversion	Each convertible note is convertible in whole, and not part, at Celtic Capital's election before the maturity date. Conversion is conditional on the Company obtaining Shareholder approval, which is being sought at the Shareholder Meeting. Where Celtic Capital provides a conversion notice, the Company may instead of converting those convertible notes, elect to repay some or all of those convertible notes at a price equal to the opening price of Shares on the conversion date, provided the total cash payment does not exceed 50% of the value of the convertible notes on issue. If a conversion would result in Celtic Capital holding more than 19.99% of the Company's issued Shares, the conversion cannot take place and the Company must instead redeem the face value of the Convertible Notes that would otherwise be converted.
Conversion Price	Lesser of \$0.01 and 85% of the VWAP for Shares over the five days (on which trading in Shares occurs) before the receipt of a conversion notice
Redemption	 The Company must repay the convertible notes in the following stages prior to the maturity date (failing which default interest will be payable): 150,000 convertible notes are repayable 45 business days after issue (being 20 June 2013). Celtic Capital has subsequently agreed to defer this until completion of the Rights Issue; 450,000 convertible notes are repayable 60 business days after issue (being 11 July 2013). Celtic Capital has subsequently agreed to defer this until completion of the Rights Issue; 450,000 convertible notes are repayable 90 business days after issue (being 22 August 2013); and any remaining unconverted convertible notes are repayable on the maturity date (being 11 October 2013). In the event that the Company raises funds of more than \$2,000,000 (whether by debt or equity), the Company must immediately use 50% of the funds raised (before costs) to repay amounts outstanding in relation to the convertible notes (failing which default interest will be payable). The Company intends to redeem the Celtic Capital Convertible Notes if the minimum subscription is raised under the Rights Issue. Celtic Capital's has agreed that the convertible securities may be repaid via cash payment before the maturity date.

	If the Company draws funds under the Celtic Capital Equity Placement Facility, Celtic Capital may direct that some or all of those proceeds are used towards repaying the convertible notes. Other than as set out above, the Company does not have a right to repay the convertible notes before the maturity date.
Default Events	 The convertible notes are subject to default events relating to: material breach by the Company that is not rectified within 5 business days of written notice from Celtic Capital;
	 non-payment of funds within 5 business days of the due date;
	untrue or misleading representations;
	winding up or insolvency; and
	suspension of Shares on the ASX for more than 5 trading days between 10 April 2013 and the maturity date.
Covenants	Until the convertible notes are fully redeemed or converted, the Company must:
	only use the Subscription Amount for working capital; and
	 not issue, or agree to issue, any Shares or instruments capable of conversion into Shares, other than the Rights Issue.
	The Company must convene a shareholder meeting to refresh the Company's 15% placement capacity under ASX Listing Rule 7.1 by 27 May 2013. Celtic Capital has agreed to extend this date until the Shareholder Meeting, but no later than 31 July 2013.
Transferability	The convertible notes may be transferred with the consent of the Company, which cannot be unreasonable withheld.
Consideration Shares	On 15 April 2013, the Company issued Celtic Capital with 9,000,000 Shares as part consideration for the issue of the Celtic Capital Convertible Notes.
Options	The Company must issue Celtic Capital with 36,000,000 New Options on the terms outlined at Section 7.2 of this Prospectus.
Collateral Shares	The Company is currently seeking shareholder approval at the Shareholder Meeting to issue Celtic Capital with 141,176,471 Shares for nil cash consideration as collateral for the convertible notes.
	If Celtic Capital sells any of the collateral Shares before the maturity date, the proceeds received will be offset against the Company's repayment obligations, in reverse order.
	To the extent Celtic Capital retains collateral Shares at the maturity date, it must pay the Company for those Shares at a price equal to the 85% of the average of the 5 day VWAP for Shares prior to the maturity date.
	If a default event occurs and is not cured by the Company within 5 business days of written notice, Celtic Capital may keep the collateral Shares and is released from the above

	offset and payment obligations.
No Participation or Voting Rights	There are no participation rights or entitlements inherent in the convertible notes and holders will not be entitled to participate in new issues of capital offered to Shareholders during the currency of the convertible notes without converting the convertible notes.
	The convertible notes do not carry any voting rights at Shareholder meetings but the Company must use reasonable endeavours to provide Celtic Capital with copies of documents at the same time as provided to Shareholders.
Legal Costs	In satisfaction of \$10,000 in legal fees incurred by Celtic Capital, the Company must issue 2,352,941 Shares (at a deemed issue price of 0.425 cents each) to Celtic Capital by 17 April 2013. The Company is seeking Shareholder approval to issue these Shares at the Shareholder Meeting. Celtic Capital has agreed to extend this date until after the Shareholder Meeting, but no later than 31 July 2013.
Governing Law	Western Australia

9.5 Bergen Debt Security

The terms and conditions of the Bergen Debt Security are as follows:

Term	Details
Subscription Amount	\$700,000 (minus \$200,000 in costs)
Face Value	\$1,200,000
	The face value of the Bergen Debt Security will increase by \$300,000 if, at any time there is an event of default.
Maturity Date	60 days after issue.
	Bergen has issued a forbearance letter dated 22 May 2013 agreeing that it will not seek repayment of the debt security until 15 August 2013
Interest	Nil, but a interest is payable on a default event occurring at the interest rate prescribed by Section 101 of the Civil Procedure Act 2005 (NSW) (as at the date of this Prospectus, the prescribed rate is 6% above the cash rate last published by the Reserve Bank of Australia).
Secured	The convertible security is secured under the General Security Deed.
Conversion	There is no right to conversion of the Bergen Debt Security.
Repayment	The Company must repay the Bergen Debt Security on or before the Maturity Date.
Negative Covenants	For as long as an amount remains owing under the Bergen Debt Security, the Company Group must not, without Bergen Global's written approval: dispose of all or part of its assets with a value of \$400,000 or over;
	reduce its Share capital or any uncalled liability, except

	by means of a purchase or redemption of Share capital permitted by Australian law;
	undertake a consolidation of Share capital;
	 incur indebtedness that is senior to, or pari passu with, the Company's obligations under the Bergen Debt Security;
	change the nature of the business;
	make an application under Section 411 of the Corporations Act;
	transfer the jurisdiction of incorporation;
	make an announcement in respect of Bergen Global or this agreement; or
	list on any other stock exchange other than ASX and the Deutsche Bourse.
Legal Costs	The Company must reimburse Bergen Global \$200,000 in legal costs incurred in respect of the Bergen Debt Security and prior transactions. This has been offset against the subscription amount of this Bergen Debt Security.
Default Events	The Bergen Debt Security is subject to the following events of default:
	breach by the Company of any obligations owed to the holder;
	the Company providing any documents, or making any statements, that are false, inaccurate, or misleading;
	the Company becoming insolvent or a winding up application being lodged;
	the Company being issued with a statutory demand;
	a controller or administrator being appointed over any of the Company Group's assets;
	the Company Group suspending or selling a substantial part of its business or assets;
	a reduction of capital;
	removal of the Company from the ASX;
	 the Company's Shares being removed from quotation on ASX;
	 a security interest over the Company Group being enforced;
	the Company Group being in default under a debt agreement;
	a Change of Control (as defined above at Section 9.2 of this Prospectus) in respect of the Company occurring; or
	a material adverse event occurring in respect of the Company's business or price of Shares.
	Upon an event of default occurring, Bergen Global may declare that any outstanding face value, or any other amount payable by the Company to Bergen Global, be immediately due and payable.
Governing Law	New South Wales

Other terms	The agreement contains other terms considered standard for an agreement of its nature.
	agreement of herrarere.

9.6 Celtic Promissory Notes / Celtic Convertible Promissory Notes

The terms and conditions of the 1,400,000 Celtic Promissory Notes / Celtic Convertible Promissory Notes are as follows.

Term	Details			
Subscription Amount	\$700,000			
Face Value	\$1.00 per convertible note (a total of \$1,400,000)			
Maturity Date	120 days after issue (being 5 October 2013)			
Interest	Interest is payable on the outstanding face value of the convertible notes at a rate of 12% per annum, subject to Shareholder approval. The interest repayments are to be satisfied via the issue of Shares			
	to the holder at the beginning of each month in advance of the proceeding month.			
	The number of Shares to be issued in satisfaction of the Interest Repayments is calculated by dividing the monthly interest repayment by either (at the sole discretion of holder) \$0.004 or 80% of the VWAP over the ten days (on which trading in Shares occurs) before the receipt of a conversion notice.			
	The default interest rate of 18% pa is payable on a default event occurring or a failure by the Company to convert/ redeem the convertible notes as and when required.			
Unsecured	The convertible notes are unsecured but are to rank in priority over any unsecured creditor.			
Conversion	Each convertible note is convertible in whole, and not part, at Celtic Capital's election before the maturity date, subject to Shareholder approval.			
	Upon the holder providing a conversion notice that requires conversion of some or all of the convertible notes, the Company may elect to satisfy such conversion by payment of cash in lieu of Shares.			
	If a conversion would result in Celtic Capital holding more than 19.99% of the Company's issued Shares, the conversion cannot take place and the Company must either seek shareholder approval to issue the additional Shares above the 19.99% threshold, or instead redeem the face value of the Convertible Notes that would otherwise be converted.			
Conversion Price	The face value of the convertible notes are convertible at either (at the sole discretion of holder) \$0.004 or 80% of the VWAP over the ten days (on which trading in Shares occurs) before the receipt of a conversion notice.			
Redemption	Upon the Maturity Date, the Company must pay to the holder the outstanding face value of any outstanding convertible notes. In the event that the Company raises funds of more than \$1,900,000 (whether by debt or equity), the Company must immediately use 50% of the funds raised (before costs), or an			

	outstanding in relation to the convertible notes. This does not apply to the funds raised from the Powerline Off-take Agreement.
Default Events	 The convertible notes are subject to default events relating to: material breach by the Company that is not rectified within 5 business days of written notice from Celtic Capital; non-payment of funds within 5 business days of the due date; untrue or misleading representations made by the Company; winding up or insolvency; and the Company is suspended from ASX for more than 5 trading days post 31 July 2013.
Covenants	 Until the convertible notes are fully redeemed or converted, the Company must,: only use the Subscription Amount for working capital; and not issue, or agree to issue, any Shares or instruments capable of conversion into Shares, other than under the Rights Issue or with Celtic Capital's consent. The Company must convene a shareholder meeting to refresh the Company's 15% placement capacity under ASX Listing Rule 7.1 by 15 July 2013.
Transferability	The convertible notes may be transferred with the consent of the Company, which cannot be unreasonable withheld.
Collateral Shares	Subject to Shareholder approval, the Company must issue Celtic Capital with \$500,000 worth of Shares (being 125,000,000 Shares at a deemed issue price of \$0.004 per Share) for nil cash consideration as collateral for the convertible notes. If Celtic Capital sells any of the collateral Shares before the maturity date, the proceeds received will be offset against the Company's repayment obligations under the convertible notes, in reverse order. The amount at which the outstanding repayments will be offset shall be determined by the cash value that the holder would have received for the sold collateral Shares by reference to the VWAP for Shares over the five days on which trading occurred prior to the sale/ disposal. To the extent Celtic Capital retains collateral Shares at the maturity date, it must pay the Company for those Shares at a price equal to the 80% of the average of the ten day VWAP for Shares prior to the maturity date. If a default event occurs and is not cured by the Company within 5 business days of written notice, Celtic Capital may keep the collateral Shares and is released from the above offset and payment obligations.
No Participation or Voting Rights	There are no participation rights or entitlements inherent in the convertible notes and holders will not be entitled to participate in new issues of capital offered to Shareholders during the currency of the convertible notes without converting the convertible notes. The convertible notes do not carry any voting rights at Shareholder meetings but the Company must use reasonable endeavours to provide Celtic Capital with copies of documents at the same time as provided to Shareholders.
Re-Organisation Events	Should the Company undertake any Share buy-backs, reorganisations, reconstructions, consolidations or sub-divisions of the Company's Shares capital then the number of Shares to be issued on conversion of the convertible notes and in satisfaction

	of the interest repayments will vary so that the holder is treated the same as Shareholders. Any adjustments will only be made to the extent that it does not contravene the Corporations Act or Listing Rules.
Governing Law	Western Australia

9.7 Equity Placement Facility

On 10 April 2013, the Company and Celtic Capital entered into the Equity Placement Facility under which, the Company, at its discretion, may require Celtic Capital to subscribe for Shares up to a total issue price of \$10,000,000.

The key terms and conditions of the Equity Placement Facility are summarised below.

- (a) (Condition Precedent): The Equity Placement Facility is conditional upon the Company obtaining all necessary shareholder approval within 60 days of execution. Celtic Capital has agreed to extend this until after the Shareholder Meeting, but no later than 31 July 2013.
- (b) (Fees): As consideration for entering into the Equity Placement Facility, the Company must, on the date of entering into the agreement, issue 70,588,235 Shares (at a deemed issue price of 0.0425 cents per Share). The Company issued 39,591,370 of these Shares on 15 April 2013 and is seeking Shareholder approval at the Shareholder meeting to issue the remaining 30,996,865 Shares.
- (c) (Legal Costs): In satisfaction of \$10,000 in legal fees incurred by Celtic Capital, the Company must issue 2,352,941 Shares (at a deemed issue price of 0.425 cents each) to Celtic Capital. The Company is seeking Shareholder approval to issue these Shares at the Shareholder Meeting.
- (d) (Shareholder Approval): If the Company has not obtained Shareholder approval to issue the Shares the subject of the Fees and Legal Costs by 9 June 2013 (or such later date as agreed by the parties), then the Company must pay Celtic Capital the cash value of the outstanding Shares. Celtic has agreed to extend this date until after the Shareholder Meeting, but no later than 31 July 2013.
- (e) (**Drawdown**): The Company may require Celtic Capital to subscribe for Shares by issuing a drawdown notice, and obtaining all necessary director and shareholder approval.
 - (i) The drawdown limit in relation each specific drawdown notice is 300% of 85% of the daily average Share trading volume over the 5 consecutive days prior to the draw down notice (**Draw Down Limit**).
 - (ii) Each draw down is conditional upon the Company following the necessary procedure, the drawdown note not exceeding the Draw Down Limit, the Company not breaching or being in default under the terms of the Equity Placement Facility, all necessary approvals being obtained, the Company being able to issue a Cleansing Statement (Celtic Capital has agreed cleansing prospectus can be used instead), Shares being

continuously quoted on ASX, and the price of Shares not being below \$0.005 on the trading day prior to the drawdown notice.

- (f) (Subscription Price): The price at which Celtic Capital must subscribe for Shares is 85% of the VWAP of Shares over the 5 consecutive trading days immediately after the Company issues a drawdown notice. If at any time during the pricing period, 85% of the VWAP of Shares on any one trading day is below \$0.005 (Relevant Trading Day), then that Relevant Trading Day will not be taken into account in the Subscription Price and the total drawdown amount will be reduced by 20% for each Relevant Trading Day.
- (g) (**Exclusivity**): The Company must not enter into or engage any similar equity arrangement with a third party without Celtic Capital's consent.
- (h) (**Proceeds**): Any proceeds raised from the Equity Placement Facility must be used by the Company for the sole purpose of satisfying general working capital expenditure.
- (i) (Maximum Holding): During the term of the Equity Placement Facility, Celtic Capital must not hold more than 19.99% interest in Shares.
- (j) (Interest): The Company must pay interest on any amounts due under the Equity Placement Facility at the default rate.
- (k) (**Termination**): The Equity Placement Facility will automatically terminate on 10 April 2016. The Company may terminate the Equity Placement Facility at its sole discretion by notice in writing to Celtic Capital. Celtic Capital may terminate the Equity Placement Facility, by notice in writing, if any of the following termination events occur:
 - (i) the Company is in material breach of the Equity Placement Facility and fails to rectify that breach within 5 business days of written notice;
 - (ii) the Company does not pay any amount payable under the Equity Placement Facility or the convertible note agreement entered into with Celtic Capital;
 - (iii) a change of control event occurring in respect of the Company;
 - (iv) any representations or warranties being false or misleading in any material respect;
 - (v) a event occurring that causes a material adverse effect on the Company or any of its business;
 - (vi) a winding up application being made in respect of any company in the Company Group;
 - (vii) an administrator or controller being appointed over any company in the Company Group;
 - (viii) the Company Group suspending, or being unable to pay, any of its debts;

- (ix) the Company seeking shareholder approval to dispose of its main undertaking or major asset;
- steps are taken to cancel the registration of any company in the Company Group;
- (xi) a compromise or arrangement is proposed between the Company and any of its creditors; or
- (xii) the Equity Placement Facility becoming unenforceable or nonperformable.
- (I) (Other terms): the Equity Placement Facility has other terms and conditions that can be considered standard for an agreement of its nature, including, but not limited to, representations and warranties, indemnities, confidentiality, negative covenants and GST.

9.8 Off-take Agreement

As announced on 6 June 2013, the Company and Powerline entered into the Off-take Agreement under which the Company, Powerline and Texas Silver have agreed the terms upon which Powerline may purchase silver from the Company.

The key terms and conditions of the Off-take Agreement are summarised below.

- (a) (**Term**): The term of the agreement is 3 years after the date of the agreement, which may be extended to 5 years, at the election of Powerline, by providing 30 days written notice to the Company.
- (b) (Condition Precedents): The sale of silver bullion is conditional upon:
 - (i) the Company and Texas Silver providing certificates to Powerline that no event of default or potential event of default has occurred, all conditions under the Off-take Agreement have been satisfied, and the Company and Texas Silver have complied with all agreements and covenants required under the Off-take Agreement;
 - (ii) the execution of specified customary security documentation; and
 - (iii) the Company having received subscriptions under the Rights Issue of \$6,000,000 by 24 July 2013.
- (c) (Sale Notice): During the Term, the Company may provide Powerline with a sale notice specifying the amount of silver to be sold under the sale notice and whether Powerline is to purchase the silver via a Sale Transaction or Pre-Pay Transaction, which Powerline may accept by providing the Company with a purchase notice. The Company must not give a Sale Notice to Powerline unless all prior outstanding silver deliveries have been satisfied.
- (d) (**Pre-pay Transaction**): the number of ounces of Silver that the Company may offer under a Pre-Pay Transaction must not be greater than 90% of the Company's anticipated production of silver bullion over a certain period of production. The Company must deliver the silver the subject of the Pre-Pay Transaction within an agreed period of time. The Company

- cannot have \$10,000,000 or more outstanding in respect of a Pre-pay Transaction at any one time.
- (e) (Pre-Pay Purchase Amount): the price at which Powerline may choose to purchase ounces of silver bullion under a Pre-pay Transaction is 95% of the settlement price per ounce of silver on the London Bullion Market Association on-a day during a specified period preceding the purchase date.
- (f) (Initial Pre Payment): On the fifth New York business day after the Company satisfies the Condition Precedents, Powerline must pay the Company \$2,000,000, which (in respect of the initial pre-payment only) is deemed to create a \$2,500,000 Pre-Payment Transaction obligation. These funds may only be used for general working capital and not for debt reduction.
- (g) (Repayment via Share Issue): the Company may satisfy repayment of a Pre-pay Transaction via the issue of Shares capped at a maximum of \$200,000 in any 30 day period. Issue of these Shares are conditional upon the Company having placement capacity under listing rule 7.1 (or obtaining Shareholder approval if necessary), and the Shares being freely tradeable on ASX. The amount of Shares to be issued in satisfaction of such repayment is calculated at the election of Powerline:
 - (i) 81% of the average of three daily VWAPs per Share (as selected by Powerline in its sole discretion) during the 20 consecutive trading days immediately prior to the conversion of the Powerline Commitment Fee; or
 - (ii) the average of two daily VWAPs per Share for the 2 consecutive trading days immediately prior to 26 March 2013 (being 1.53 cents),

(Repayment Formula).

- (h) (Interest): Nil, but if an Event of Default occurs, interest shall be payable at the interest rate prescribed by Section 101 of the Civil Procedure Act 2005 (NSW) (as at the Date of this Prospectus, the prescribed rate is 6% (per annum) above the cash rate last published by the Reserve Bank of Australia), compounded monthly.
- (i) (Sale Transaction): the number of ounces of Silver that the Company may offer under a sale transaction must not be greater than the Company's anticipated production of silver over a certain period following the Sale Notice.
- (j) (**Spot Price**): the price at which Powerline may choose to purchase ounces of silver bullion under a Sale Transaction is:
 - (i) the settlement price per ounce of silver on the London Bullion Market Association on a day during a specified period preceding the purchase date; or
 - (ii) at the election of Powerline, in relation to no more than 500,000 ounces of silver, \$25 per ounce.

- (k) (Commitment Fee): the Company must issue Powerline with \$200,000 worth of Shares at each anniversary of the agreement as a commitment fee. The issue of these Shares are conditional upon the Company obtaining Shareholder approval, and the Shares being freely tradeable on ASX. The Company must either issue a Cleansing Statement or lodge a cleansing prospectus in order to allow these Shares to be freely tradeable. The amount of Shares to be issued in satisfaction of the Commitment Fee is calculated in accordance with the Repayment Formula.
- (I) (Negative Covenants): during the term of the agreement, the Company must not:
 - (i) create or permit to exist any encumbrance of any of the Company Group's assets other than any permitted encumbrance;
 - (ii) transfer any of its assets or receivables;
 - (iii) enter into any title recognition arrangement;
 - (iv) enter into any arrangement under which money (or the benefit of a bank account) may be applied, set-off or made subject to a combination of accounts;
 - (v) incur or permit to exist any financial indebtedness other than permitted financial indebtedness;
 - (vi) make any substantial change to the business of the Company Group;
 - (vii) enter into any amalgamation, demerger, merger or reconstruction without the consent of the Powerline
 - (viii) acquire any business, shares or other ownership in any other person, other than acquisitions approved by Powerline or acquisitions that do not exceed \$250,000 in aggregate in any financial year;
 - (ix) issue, sell, or grant a right over any shares in any of the Company's subsidiaries;
 - enter into any contract that are not at arm's length other than between the Company and Texas Silver; or
 - (xi) amend its constitution in any way that could adversely affect Powerline.
- (m) (**Board Nominees**): Powerline may nominate two persons to be non-executive directors of the Company and Texas Silver (and any future replacements).
- (n) (Security): the Company Groups obligations under the Off-take Agreement are secured by the Powerline General Security Deed.
- (o) (**Events of Default**): events of default in respect of the Off-take Agreement are:

- (i) non-payment of any amount owing under the Off-take Agreement or other related documents;
- (ii) the Company not complying with any term of the Off-take Agreement or associated agreements;
- (iii) the Company breaching or otherwise failing to comply in full with any of its obligations under any other document to which the Company, Powerline and any of their affiliates are a party to:
- (iv) an event of default or a like event is asserted by Powerline (ar an affiliate) under any a document to which the Company, Powerline and any of their affiliates are a party;
- (v) the Company Group causing an event of default in any material document it is a party to, without such breach being cured in the permitted timeframe;
- (vi) any representations or statements made by the Company being false or misleading in any material respect;
- (vii) the Company does not repay any financial in indebtedness when due:
- (viii) any financial indebtedness become prematurely due and payable or placed on demand as a result of an event of default or similar event;
- (ix) any commitment for financial indebtedness is cancelled or suspended as a result of an event of default;
- (x) any event of insolvency occurs in relation to any of the Company Group;
- (xi) an encumbrance over a Company asset is enforced;
- (xii) any attachment, sequestration, distress, execution or analogous event affects any assets of the Company Group, having an aggregate value of at least \$250,000.
- (xiii) the Company or any of its subsidiaries threaten to cease carrying on business;
- (xiv) the Off-take Agreement or any associated documents being incapable of performance or enforcement, or any person asserting any claim which seeks to challenge or limit the rights of Powerline or the Company to undertake any contemplated transaction under the Off-take Agreement;
- (xv) any security document to which the Company Group, Powerline and any affiliates are a party, failing to create the encumbrance it purports to create;
- (xvi) a change in control occurring, meaning:
 - (A) any person directly or indirectly acquiring an interest in or becoming the holder of more than 15% of the shares

- in any of the companies in the Company Group, or acquiring the whole or a material part of the business or property of the Company Group;
- (B) any person acquires control (within the meaning of Section 50AA of the Corporations Act) of any company in the Company Group;
- (C) any person comes to be in a position to control the composition of any the Company Group's board; and
- (D) the appointment, removal or resignation of any person as a director of the Company;
- (xvii) the Company reduces or takes steps to reduce its capital or passes a resolution referred to in Section 254N(1) of the Corporations Act;
- (xviii) the constitution of the Company being amended in a material respect without the prior consent of Powerline (not be withheld unreasonably);
- (xix) Mining Lease 5932 or Mining Lease 50161 being repealed, revoked, terminated or found to be invalid, expires or suspended;
- (xx) any property that secures the performance of the Company's obligations under the Off-take Agreement is compulsorily acquired or steps are taken to that effect;
- (xxi) the Company's Texas Silver Project being abandoned or destroyed beyond repair in circumstances not fully covered by insurance proceeds;
- (xxii) the Company being suspended for 30 or more calendar days, a stop order, cessation of quotation, or removal of the Shares from official quotation on ASX being requested or imposed; or
- (xxiii) any event or series of events occurs which, in the opinion of Powerline, has or could have a material adverse effect on the Company's business or assets.

If, in Powerline's reasonable opinion, an Event of Default has occurred, Powerline may declare the Company's secured obligations immediately due and payable, enforce any encumbrance, and terminate the agreement without prejudice to any rights that may be available in law or equity.

(p) (Other terms): the Off-take Agreement has other terms and conditions that can be considered standard for an agreement of its nature.

9.9 Patersons Mandate Letter

The Company and Patersons have entered into a mandate agreement dated 8 April 2013, under which Patersons has agreed to act as the sole and exclusive Lead Manager to the Entitlement Offer.

Patersons participation as Lead Manager to the Entitlement Offer is conditional upon:

- (a) the opportunity to review any due diligence material in relation to the Entitlement Offer;
- (b) the terms of the Entitlement Offer being satisfactory to Patersons;
- (c) this Prospectus fully complying will all applicable law and being satisfactory to Patersons;
- (d) a legal sign-off being provided to the Company by the Company's solicitor's:
- (e) Patersons executing its consent to be named in the Prospectus in a form satisfactory to Patersons; and
- (f) the Company conducting a serious of presentations to advisors and investors.

The Consideration payable by the Company to Patersons is \$80,000, plus 6% of the gross dollar amount raised under the Entitlement Offer and Shortfall. The Company must also issue Options to Patersons equal to 6% of the total number of Shares issued under the Entitlement Offer, being up to 195,011,126 New Options. These Options are on the same terms and conditions as the New Options, summarised at Section 7.2 of this Prospectus.

The Company will reimburse Patersons for its out of pocket expenses related to the Entitlement Offer and will obtain the Company's prior consent before incurring an expense greater than \$2,000.

The Patersons Mandate otherwise contains standard clauses typical for an agreement of this nature.

9.10 Deed of Termination and Release

As previously announced, Mr Andrew King (former Managing Director) resigned as a Director on 15 March 2013.

On 13 March 2013, the Company, Texas Silver Mines and Mr Andrew King entered into a Deed of Termination and Release which records the terms on which Mr Andrew King's Executive Service Agreement dated 1 August 2011 (Executive Service Agreement) was terminated.

The Company agreed to pay Mr Andrew King six month's salary under the Services Agreement, being approximately \$220,000, plus GST, plus the Director's accrued but unpaid superannuation and leave entitlements as consideration for:

- (a) the termination of the Executive Services Agreement and the Company's full and final release from any payments or claims that Mr Andrew King may make in relation to the Executive Services Agreement; and
- (b) his assistance to the Directors for no additional compensation in the two week period following his resignation.

9.11 Powerline / Bergen Guarantee Arrangement

On 7June 2013 the Company, Texas Silver Mines and Bergen Global entered into an agreement whereby the Company may require Bergen to guarantee any of its obligations owed to Powerline under the Off-take Agreement until 21 June 2013 (or such later date as agreed between the parties) (**Guarantee Facility Agreement**).

Bergen Global's obligation to make any guarantee under this agreement is conditional upon:

- (a) the representations and warranties made or deemed to be made by the Company under any agreement to which the Company and Bergen Global are a party, being true and correct;
- (b) no event of default or potential event of default having occurred; and
- (c) Bergen being satisfied that all condition precedents in respect of the Off-take Agreement have been satisfied.

In consideration for Bergen Global providing any such guarantee, the Company must pay Bergen such fees as agreed between them. The Company must, on demand, immediately pay Bergen Global any amount that Bergen is obliged to pay Powerline under any guarantee.

The Guarantee Facility Agreement contains other terms, including in relation to default, as are considered standard for an agreement of its type.

Bergen has entered into a separate guarantee agreement on 7 June 2013 under which it agreed to guarantee the obligations of the Company and Texas Silver Mines under the Off-take Agreement.

10. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

10.1 Litigation

As at the date of this Prospectus, the Company is not involved in any legal proceedings and the Directors are not aware of any legal proceedings pending or threatened against the Company.

The Company is currently involved in discussions with Andrew King regarding amounts owed to him by the Company, details of which as disclosed at Section 9.10 of this Prospectus. As at the date of this Prospectus, no litigation has been commenced or threatened.

10.2 Continuous disclosure obligations

The Company is a "disclosing entity" (as defined in Section 111AC of the Corporations Act) for the purposes of Section 713 of the Corporations Act and, as such, is subject to regular reporting and disclosure obligations. Specifically, like all listed companies, the Company is required to continuously disclose any information it has to the market which a reasonable person would expect to have a material effect on the price or the value of the Company's securities.

This Prospectus is a "transaction specific prospectus". In general terms a "transaction specific prospectus" is only required to contain information in relation to the effect of the issue of securities on a company and the rights attaching to the securities. It is not necessary to include general information in relation to all of the assets and liabilities, financial position, profits and losses or prospects of the issuing company.

This Prospectus is intended to be read in conjunction with the publicly available information in relation to the Company which has been notified to ASX and does not include all of the information that would be included in a prospectus for an initial public offering of securities in an entity that is not already listed on a stock exchange. Investors should therefore have regard to the other publicly available information in relation to the Company before making a decision whether or not to invest.

Having taken such precautions and having made such enquires as are reasonable, the Company believes that it has complied with the general and specific requirements of ASX as applicable from time to time throughout the 3 months before the issue of this Prospectus which required the Company to notify ASX of information about specified events or matters as they arise for the purpose of ASX making that information available to the stock market conducted by ASX.

Information that is already in the public domain has not been reported in this Prospectus other than that which is considered necessary to make this Prospectus complete.

The Company, as a disclosing entity under the Corporations Act states that:

- (a) it is subject to regular reporting and disclosure obligations;
- (b) copies of documents lodged with the ASIC in relation to the Company (not being documents referred to in Section 1274(2)(a) of the Corporations Act) may be obtained from, or inspected at, the offices of the ASIC; and

- (c) it will provide a copy of each of the following documents, free of charge, to any person on request between the date of issue of this Prospectus and the Closing Date:
 - (i) the annual financial report most recently lodged by the Company with the ASIC;
 - (ii) any half-year financial report lodged by the Company with the ASIC after the lodgement of the annual financial report referred to in (i) and before the lodgement of this Prospectus with the ASIC; and
 - (iii) any continuous disclosure documents given by the Company to ASX in accordance with the ASX Listing Rules as referred to in Section 674(1) of the Corporations Act after the lodgement of the annual financial report referred to in (i) and before the lodgement of this Prospectus with the ASIC.

Copies of all documents lodged with the ASIC in relation to the Company can be inspected at the registered office of the Company during normal office hours.

Details of documents lodged by the Company with ASX since the date of lodgement of the Company's latest annual financial report and before the lodgement of this Prospectus with the ASIC are set out in the table below.

Data	Description	of Announcement
Date	Describition	of Announcement

06/06/2013	Alcyone executes \$10M Prepay Facility
31/05/2013	Rights Issue - Letter to Ineligible Shareholders
31/05/2013	Rights Issue - Letter to Eligible Shareholders
30/05/2013	ASX Waivers - Pro-rata, non-renounceable rights issue
30/05/2013	Letter to Option Holders
30/05/2013	Non-Renounceable Issue - Prospectus & 3B
17/05/2013	Funding Update
16/05/2013	Rights Issue Timetable
07/05/2013	Shareholder Presentation Update
06/05/2013	Shareholder Presentation
30/04/2013	Quarterly Activities and Cashflow Report
23/04/2013	Chairman's Letter to Shareholders
19/04/2013	Appendix 3B
18/04/2013	Close Out Of Hedge Position
15/04/2013	Fund Raising Update
09/04/2013	Suspension from Official Quotation
08/04/2013	Trading halt
28/03/2013	s708A Notice
28/03/2013	Appendix 3B

Date Description of Announcement

22/03/2013 Funding Update 22/03/2013 Funding Update 22/03/2013 Appendix 3X and Appendix 3Z 18/03/2013 Director Resignation / Appointment and Operations Update 18/03/2013 Half Year Accounts 18/03/2013 Appendix 3Z x 3 15/03/2013 Reinstatement to Official Quotation 15/03/2013 Board Changes and Funding Update 13/03/2013 Suspension from Official Quotation 11/03/2013 Trading Halt 07/03/2013 Appendix 3Y 01/03/2013 S&P DJ Indices Announces March Quarterly Rebalance 26/02/2013 Appendix 3B and Section 708A Notice 26/02/2013 Alcyone Secures \$5.5M in Funding 25/02/2013 Quarterly Activities and Cashflow Report 19/12/2012 Texas Silver Operations and Corporate Update 22/11/2012 Quarterly Activities and Cashflow Report 18/10/2012 Notice of Annual General Meeting/Proxy Form		<u> </u>
22/03/2013 Appendix 3X and Appendix 3Z 18/03/2013 Director Resignation / Appointment and Operations Update 18/03/2013 Half Year Accounts 18/03/2013 Appendix 3Z x 3 15/03/2013 Reinstatement to Official Quotation 15/03/2013 Board Changes and Funding Update 13/03/2013 Suspension from Official Quotation 11/03/2013 Trading Halt 07/03/2013 Appendix 3Y 01/03/2013 S&P DJ Indices Announces March Quarterly Rebalance 26/02/2013 Appendix 3B and Section 708A Notice 26/02/2013 Alcyone Secures \$5.5M in Funding 25/02/2013 Trading Halt 31/01/2013 Quarterly Activities and Cashflow Report 19/12/2012 Results of Meeting 31/10/2012 Quarterly Activities and Cashflow Report	28/03/2013	Funding Update
Director Resignation / Appointment and Operations Update 18/03/2013 Half Year Accounts 18/03/2013 Appendix 3Z x 3 15/03/2013 Reinstatement to Official Quotation 15/03/2013 Board Changes and Funding Update 13/03/2013 Suspension from Official Quotation 11/03/2013 Trading Halt 07/03/2013 Appendix 3Y 01/03/2013 S&P DJ Indices Announces March Quarterly Rebalance 26/02/2013 Appendix 3B and Section 708A Notice 26/02/2013 Alcyone Secures \$5.5M in Funding 25/02/2013 Trading Halt 31/01/2013 Quarterly Activities and Cashflow Report 19/12/2012 Results of Meeting 31/10/2012 Quarterly Activities and Cashflow Report	22/03/2013	Funding Update
18/03/2013 Half Year Accounts 18/03/2013 Appendix 3Z x 3 15/03/2013 Reinstatement to Official Quotation 15/03/2013 Board Changes and Funding Update 13/03/2013 Suspension from Official Quotation 11/03/2013 Trading Halt 07/03/2013 Appendix 3Y 01/03/2013 S&P DJ Indices Announces March Quarterly Rebalance 26/02/2013 Appendix 3B and Section 708A Notice 26/02/2013 Alcyone Secures \$5.5M in Funding 25/02/2013 Trading Halt 31/01/2013 Quarterly Activities and Cashflow Report 19/12/2012 Results of Meeting 31/10/2012 Quarterly Activities and Cashflow Report	22/03/2013	Appendix 3X and Appendix 3Z
18/03/2013 Appendix 3Z x 3 15/03/2013 Reinstatement to Official Quotation 15/03/2013 Board Changes and Funding Update 13/03/2013 Suspension from Official Quotation 11/03/2013 Trading Halt 07/03/2013 Appendix 3Y 01/03/2013 S&P DJ Indices Announces March Quarterly Rebalance 26/02/2013 Appendix 3B and Section 708A Notice 26/02/2013 Alcyone Secures \$5.5M in Funding 25/02/2013 Trading Halt 31/01/2013 Quarterly Activities and Cashflow Report 19/12/2012 Results of Meeting 31/10/2012 Quarterly Activities and Cashflow Report	18/03/2013	Director Resignation / Appointment and Operations Update
15/03/2013 Reinstatement to Official Quotation 15/03/2013 Board Changes and Funding Update 13/03/2013 Suspension from Official Quotation 11/03/2013 Trading Halt 07/03/2013 Appendix 3Y 01/03/2013 S&P DJ Indices Announces March Quarterly Rebalance 26/02/2013 Appendix 3B and Section 708A Notice 26/02/2013 Alcyone Secures \$5.5M in Funding 25/02/2013 Trading Halt 31/01/2013 Quarterly Activities and Cashflow Report 19/12/2012 Texas Silver Operations and Corporate Update 22/11/2012 Results of Meeting 31/10/2012 Quarterly Activities and Cashflow Report	18/03/2013	Half Year Accounts
15/03/2013 Board Changes and Funding Update 13/03/2013 Suspension from Official Quotation 11/03/2013 Trading Halt 07/03/2013 Appendix 3Y 01/03/2013 S&P DJ Indices Announces March Quarterly Rebalance 26/02/2013 Appendix 3B and Section 708A Notice 26/02/2013 Alcyone Secures \$5.5M in Funding 25/02/2013 Trading Halt 31/01/2013 Quarterly Activities and Cashflow Report 19/12/2012 Texas Silver Operations and Corporate Update 22/11/2012 Results of Meeting 31/10/2012 Quarterly Activities and Cashflow Report	18/03/2013	Appendix 3Z x 3
13/03/2013 Suspension from Official Quotation 11/03/2013 Trading Halt 07/03/2013 Appendix 3Y 01/03/2013 S&P DJ Indices Announces March Quarterly Rebalance 26/02/2013 Appendix 3B and Section 708A Notice 26/02/2013 Alcyone Secures \$5.5M in Funding 25/02/2013 Trading Halt 31/01/2013 Quarterly Activities and Cashflow Report 19/12/2012 Texas Silver Operations and Corporate Update 22/11/2012 Results of Meeting 31/10/2012 Quarterly Activities and Cashflow Report	15/03/2013	Reinstatement to Official Quotation
11/03/2013 Trading Halt 07/03/2013 Appendix 3Y 01/03/2013 S&P DJ Indices Announces March Quarterly Rebalance 26/02/2013 Appendix 3B and Section 708A Notice 26/02/2013 Alcyone Secures \$5.5M in Funding 25/02/2013 Trading Halt 31/01/2013 Quarterly Activities and Cashflow Report 19/12/2012 Texas Silver Operations and Corporate Update 22/11/2012 Results of Meeting 31/10/2012 Quarterly Activities and Cashflow Report	15/03/2013	Board Changes and Funding Update
07/03/2013 Appendix 3Y 01/03/2013 S&P DJ Indices Announces March Quarterly Rebalance 26/02/2013 Appendix 3B and Section 708A Notice 26/02/2013 Alcyone Secures \$5.5M in Funding 25/02/2013 Trading Halt 31/01/2013 Quarterly Activities and Cashflow Report 19/12/2012 Texas Silver Operations and Corporate Update 22/11/2012 Results of Meeting 31/10/2012 Quarterly Activities and Cashflow Report	13/03/2013	Suspension from Official Quotation
01/03/2013 S&P DJ Indices Announces March Quarterly Rebalance 26/02/2013 Appendix 3B and Section 708A Notice 26/02/2013 Alcyone Secures \$5.5M in Funding 25/02/2013 Trading Halt 31/01/2013 Quarterly Activities and Cashflow Report 19/12/2012 Texas Silver Operations and Corporate Update 22/11/2012 Results of Meeting 31/10/2012 Quarterly Activities and Cashflow Report	11/03/2013	Trading Halt
26/02/2013 Appendix 3B and Section 708A Notice 26/02/2013 Alcyone Secures \$5.5M in Funding 25/02/2013 Trading Halt 31/01/2013 Quarterly Activities and Cashflow Report 19/12/2012 Texas Silver Operations and Corporate Update 22/11/2012 Results of Meeting 31/10/2012 Quarterly Activities and Cashflow Report	07/03/2013	Appendix 3Y
26/02/2013 Alcyone Secures \$5.5M in Funding 25/02/2013 Trading Halt 31/01/2013 Quarterly Activities and Cashflow Report 19/12/2012 Texas Silver Operations and Corporate Update 22/11/2012 Results of Meeting 31/10/2012 Quarterly Activities and Cashflow Report	01/03/2013	S&P DJ Indices Announces March Quarterly Rebalance
25/02/2013 Trading Halt 31/01/2013 Quarterly Activities and Cashflow Report 19/12/2012 Texas Silver Operations and Corporate Update 22/11/2012 Results of Meeting 31/10/2012 Quarterly Activities and Cashflow Report	26/02/2013	Appendix 3B and Section 708A Notice
31/01/2013 Quarterly Activities and Cashflow Report 19/12/2012 Texas Silver Operations and Corporate Update 22/11/2012 Results of Meeting 31/10/2012 Quarterly Activities and Cashflow Report	26/02/2013	Alcyone Secures \$5.5M in Funding
19/12/2012 Texas Silver Operations and Corporate Update 22/11/2012 Results of Meeting 31/10/2012 Quarterly Activities and Cashflow Report	25/02/2013	Trading Halt
22/11/2012 Results of Meeting 31/10/2012 Quarterly Activities and Cashflow Report	31/01/2013	Quarterly Activities and Cashflow Report
31/10/2012 Quarterly Activities and Cashflow Report	19/12/2012	Texas Silver Operations and Corporate Update
	22/11/2012	Results of Meeting
18/10/2012 Notice of Annual General Meeting/Proxy Form	31/10/2012	Quarterly Activities and Cashflow Report
	18/10/2012	Notice of Annual General Meeting/Proxy Form

ASX maintains files containing publicly available information for all listed companies. The Company's file is available for inspection at ASX during normal office hours.

The announcements are also available through the Company's website www.alcyone.com.au.

10.3 Market price of shares

The Company is a disclosing entity for the purposes of the Corporations Act and its Shares are enhanced disclosure securities quoted on ASX.

The highest, lowest and last market sale prices of the Shares on ASX during the three months immediately preceding the date of lodgement of this Prospectus with the ASIC and the respective dates of those sales were:

Highest	\$0.028	1 March 2013
Lowest	\$0.01	5 April 2013
Last	\$0.012	5 April 2013

Please note that the Company's Shares have been suspended from trading on ASX since 8 April 2013 and such the above prices (specifically the last closing

price) may not provide an accurate indication of the current market price of Shares.

10.4 Interests of Directors

Other than as set out in this Prospectus, no Director or proposed Director holds, or has held within the 2 years preceding lodgement of this Prospectus with the ASIC, any interest in:

- (a) the formation or promotion of the Company;
- (b) any property acquired or proposed to be acquired by the Company in connection with:
 - (i) its formation or promotion; or
 - (ii) the Entitlement Offer; or
- (c) the Entitlement Offer,

and no amounts have been paid or agreed to be paid and no benefits have been given or agreed to be given to a Director or proposed Director:

- (d) as an inducement to become, or to qualify as, a Director; or
- (e) for services provided in connection with:
 - (i) the formation or promotion of the Company; or
 - (ii) the Entitlement Offer.

Security holdings

The relevant interest of each of the Directors in the securities of the Company as at the date of this Prospectus, together with their respective Entitlement, is set out in the table below.

Director	Shares	Options	Entitlement	\$
Michael Reed	Nil	1,000,000	Nil	Zil
Paul D'Sylva	Nil	Nil	Nil	Nil
Tim Morrison	Nil	Nil	Nil	Nil

Whilst the Board does not own any Shares in the Company and, as such, cannot participate in the Entitlement Offer, each Director recommends Shareholders take up their Entitlement and that they believe the Entitlement Offer is an opportunity to participate in the strengthening of the Company's financial position and receive future Shareholder return from the Company's Texas Silver Project.

Remuneration

The remuneration of an executive Director is decided by the Board, without the affected executive Director participating in that decision-making process. The total maximum remuneration of non-executive Directors is initially set by the Constitution and subsequent variation is by ordinary resolution of Shareholders in

general meeting in accordance with the Constitution, the Corporations Act and the ASX Listing Rules, as applicable. The determination of non-executive Directors' remuneration within that maximum will be made by the Board having regard to the inputs and value to the Company of the respective contributions by each non-executive Director. The current amount has been set at an amount not to exceed \$400,000 per annum.

A Director may be paid fees or other amounts (ie non-cash performance incentives such as Options, subject to any necessary Shareholder approval) as the other Directors determine where a Director performs special duties or otherwise performs services outside the scope of the ordinary duties of a Director. In addition, Directors are also entitled to be paid reasonable travelling, hotel and other expenses incurred by them respectively in or about the performance of their duties as Directors.

The following table shows the total (and proposed) annual remuneration paid to both executive and non-executive directors.

Director	2010/2011	2011/2012	2012/2013
Michael Reed ¹	\$35,609	\$357,137	\$400,0004
Paul D'Sylva ²	n/a	n/a	Nil ⁴
Tim Morrison ³	n/a	n/a	Nil ⁴

Notes:

- 1. Mr Reed was appointed an executive Director on 15 March 2013 and was recently appointed as Managing Director of the Company. Previous to this appointment, Mr Reed held a senior management position within the Company and was responsible for the management of the Company's Texas Silver Mine.
- 2. Mr D'Sylva was appointed a Director on 13 March 2013.
- 3. Mr Morrison was appointed a Director on 13 March 2013.
- 4. Subject to Shareholder approval at the Shareholder Meeting, the Company may issue up to 505,215,736 Performance Rights (10% of the amount of Shares on issue after completion of the Entitlement Offer) to Messrs Michael Reed, Paul D'Sylva, Tim Morrison and Trevor Harris (Company Secretary and CFO), to be divided equally between these employees (see below for further details).

Board & Senior Management Incentive Package

The Company currently has an employee performance rights plan which was approved by Shareholders on 25 November 2010. The Company will be seeking shareholder approval at the Shareholder Meeting to re-adopt this plan and to implement a non-executive performance rights to allow the Company to issue Performance Rights to non-executive Directors.

Subject to Shareholder approval at the Shareholder meeting, the Company will issue that number of Performance Rights that is equal to 10% of the amount of Shares on issue after completion of the Entitlement Offer to Messrs Michael Reed, Paul D'Sylva, Tim Morrison and Trevor Harris (Company Secretary and CFO) under the relevant performance right plan.

The maximum number of Performance Rights to be issued is 505,215,736 (assuming full subscription under the Entitlement Offer and all Shares to be issued to Celtic Capital are issued prior to completion of the Entitlement Offer). The Performance Rights will be apportioned equally between Messrs Michael Reed, Paul D'Sylva, Tim Morrison and Trevor Harris.

The Performance Rights will vest and convert into Shares (on the basis of 1 Share for every 1 Performance Right) subject to the following performance hurdles being met:

- (a) 50% of the Performance Rights will vest and convert into Shares (on a upon completion of the Entitlement Offer;
- (b) 25% of the Performance Rights will vest and convert into Shares upon the Company first achieving production of 100,000oz of silver in a 1 month period; and
- (c) 25% of the Performance Rights will vest and convert into Shares upon the Company first achieving production of 500,000oz of silver in any 6 month period.

The Performance Rights are being issued as a non cash performance incentive for each of Messrs Reed, D'Sylva, Morrison and Harris.

10.5 Interests of experts and advisers

Other than as set out below or elsewhere in this Prospectus, no:

- (a) person named in this Prospectus as performing a function in a professional, advisory or other capacity in connection with the preparation or distribution of this Prospectus;
- (b) promoter of the Company; or
- (c) underwriter (but not a sub-underwriter) to the issue or a financial services licensee named in this Prospectus as a financial services licensee involved in the issue,

holds, or has held within the 2 years preceding lodgement of this Prospectus with the ASIC, any interest in:

- (d) the formation or promotion of the Company;
- (e) any property acquired or proposed to be acquired by the Company in connection with:
 - (i) its formation or promotion; or
 - (ii) the Entitlement Offer; or
- (f) the Entitlement Offer,

and no amounts have been paid or agreed to be paid and no benefits have been given or agreed to be given to any of these persons for services provided in connection with:

(g) the formation or promotion of the Company; or

(h) the Entitlement Offer.

Steinepreis Paganin has acted as the solicitors to the Company in relation to the Entitlement Offer. The Company estimates it will pay Steinepreis Paganin \$40,000 (excluding GST and disbursements) for these services. During the 24 months preceding lodgement of this Prospectus with the ASIC, Steinepreis Paganin has been paid fees totalling \$93,000 (excluding GST and disbursements) for legal services provided to the Company.

Patersons Securities Limited will be paid a management fee of approximately \$1,055,056 (assuming maximum subscription) in respect of this Entitlement Offer. During the 24 months preceding lodgement of this Prospectus with the ASIC, Patersons Securities Limited has not been paid any fees by the Company.

10.6 Consents

Patersons Securities Limited has given, and at the time of lodgment of this Prospectus, has not withdrawn its consent to be named as Lead Manager to the offer of securities under this Prospectus, in the form and context in which it is named.

Patersons Securities Limited:

- (a) was not involved in the preparation of any part of this Prospectus and has not authorised or caused the issue of the Prospectus
- (b) does not make, or purport to make, any statement in the Prospectus or on which a statement made in the Prospectus is based other than as specified in Section 10.5 of the Prospectus; and
- (c) to the maximum extent permitted by law, expressly disclaims and takes no responsibility for any part of the Prospectus other than a reference to its name and a statement included in the Prospectus with the consent of Patersons Securities Limited as specified in Section 9.9 of the Prospectus.

Steinepreis Paganin has given its written consent to being named as the solicitors to the Company in this Prospectus. Steinepreis Paganin has not withdrawn its consent prior to the lodgement of this Prospectus with the ASIC. Steinepreis Paganin:

- (a) does not make, or purport to make, any statement in this Prospectus other than Section 10.5; and
- (b) to the maximum extent permitted by law, expressly disclaim and take no responsibility for any part of this Prospectus other than a reference to its name and a statement included in this Prospectus with the consent of that party as specified in this section.

10.7 Expenses of the Entitlement Offer

In the event that all Entitlements are accepted, the total expenses of the Entitlement Offer are estimated to be approximately \$1,158,732 (excluding GST) and are expected to be applied towards the items set out in the table below:

ASIC fees 2.171

ASX fees	45,005
Lead Manager fees ¹	1,055,056
Legal fees	46,000
Printing and distribution	8,500
Miscellaneous	2,000
Total	1,158,732

Notes:

1. The Company will also grant the Lead Manager (or their nominee) up to 195,011,126 Broker Options as part consideration for their services performed as Lead Manager. Refer to Section 9.9 of this Prospectus for further details.

10.8 Electronic prospectus

Pursuant to Class Order 00/44, the ASIC has exempted compliance with certain provisions of the Corporations Act to allow distribution of an electronic prospectus and electronic application form on the basis of a paper prospectus lodged with the ASIC, and the publication of notices referring to an electronic prospectus or electronic application form, subject to compliance with certain conditions.

If you have received this Prospectus as an electronic Prospectus, please ensure that you have received the entire Prospectus accompanied by the Application Forms. If you have not, please phone the Company on +61 8 9476 3000 and the Company will send you, for free, either a hard copy or a further electronic copy of the Prospectus, or both. Alternatively, you may obtain a copy of this Prospectus from the Company's website at www.alcyone.com.au.

The Company reserves the right not to accept an Application Form from a person if it has reason to believe that when that person was given access to the electronic Application Form, it was not provided together with the electronic Prospectus and any relevant supplementary or replacement prospectus or any of those documents were incomplete or altered.

10.9 Financial forecasts

The Directors have considered the matters set out in ASIC Regulatory Guide 170 and believe that they do not have a reasonable basis to forecast future earnings on the basis that the operations of the Company are inherently uncertain. Accordingly, any forecast or projection information would contain such a broad range of potential outcomes and possibilities that it is not possible to prepare a reliable best estimate forecast or projection.

10.10 Clearing House Electronic Sub-Register System (CHESS) and Issuer Sponsorship

The Company will not be issuing share or option certificates. The Company is a participant in CHESS, for those investors who have, or wish to have, a sponsoring stockbroker. Investors who do not wish to participate through CHESS will be issuer sponsored by the Company. Because the sub-registers are electronic, ownership of securities can be transferred without having to rely upon paper documentation.

Electronic registers mean that the Company will not be issuing certificates to investors. Instead, investors will be provided with a statement (similar to a bank

account statement) that sets out the number of Shares allotted to them under this Prospectus. The notice will also advise holders of their Holder Identification Number or Security Holder Reference Number and explain, for future reference, the sale and purchase procedures under CHESS and issuer sponsorship.

Further monthly statements will be provided to holders if there have been any changes in their security holding in the Company during the preceding month.

10.11 Privacy Act

If you complete an application for Securities, you will be providing personal information to the Company (directly or by the Company's share registry). The Company collects, holds and will use that information to assess your application, service your needs as a holder of equity securities in the Company, facilitate distribution payments and corporate communications to you as a Shareholder and carry out administration.

The information may also be used from time to time and disclosed to persons inspecting the register, bidders for your securities in the context of takeovers, regulatory bodies, including the Australian Taxation Office, authorised securities brokers, print service providers, mail houses and the Company's share registry.

You can access, correct and update the personal information that we hold about you. Please contact the Company or its share registry if you wish to do so at the relevant contact numbers set out in this Prospectus.

Collection, maintenance and disclosure of certain personal information is governed by legislation including the *Privacy Act 1988* (Cth) (as amended), the Corporations Act and certain rules such as the ASX Settlement Operating Rules. You should note that if you do not provide the information required on the application for Securities, the Company may not be able to accept or process your application.

11. DIRECTORS' AUTHORISATION

This Prospectus is issued by the Company and its issue has been authorised by a resolution of the Directors.

In accordance with Section 720 of the Corporations Act, each Director has consented to the lodgement of this Prospectus with the ASIC.

Paul D'Sylva Non-executive Chairman For and on behalf of Alcyone Resources Limited

12. GLOSSARY

\$ means the lawful currency of the Commonwealth of Australia.

\$250,000 Bergen Convertible Debt Security means the debt security issued to Bergen Global on 26 March 2013 with an initial face value of \$250,000 and maturing 26 March 2015 and otherwise on the terms summarised in Section 9.2 of this Prospectus.

\$750,000 Bergen Convertible Debt Security means the debt security issued to Bergen Global on 26 March 2013 with an initial face value of \$750,000 and maturing 26 March 2015 and otherwise on the terms summarised in Section 9.3 of this Prospectus.

Applicant means a Shareholder who applies for Shares pursuant to the Entitlement Offer or a Shareholder or other party who applies for Shortfall Shares pursuant to the Shortfall Offer.

Application Form means an Entitlement and Acceptance Form or Shortfall Application Form as the context requires.

ASIC means the Australian Securities and Investments Commission.

ASX means ASX Limited (ACN 008 624 691) or the financial market operated by it as the context requires.

ASX Listing Rules means the listing rules of the ASX.

ASX Settlement Operating Rules means the settlement rules of the securities clearing house which operates CHESS.

Bergen Debt Security means the Debt Security with an initial face value of \$1,200,000 issued to Bergen Global on the terms summarised at Section 9.5 of this Prospectus.

Bergen Global means Bergen Global Opportunity Fund II, LLC.

Bergen Global Convertible Securities Agreement means the agreement of that name dated 24 February 2013 between the Company and Bergen Global under which the First Bergen Global Convertible Security was issued.

Board means the board of Directors unless the context indicates otherwise.

Broker Offer means the offer of Broker Options offered under this Prospectus.

Broker Options means up to 195,011,126 New Options to be issued to Patersons (or their nominee) as part consideration for Patersons acting as Lead Manager to the Entitlement Offer.

Business Day means Monday to Friday inclusive, except New Year's Day, Good Friday, Easter Monday, Christmas Day, Boxing Day and any other day that ASX declares is not a business day.

Celtic Capital means Celtic Capital Pty Ltd (ACN 120 688 262).

Celtic Convertible Debt Securities means 1,800,000 debt securities issued to Celtic Capital on 15 April 2013 with an initial face value of \$1.00 each and

maturing 11 October 2013 and otherwise on the terms summarised at Section 9.4 of this Prospectus.

Celtic Convertible Securities means 1,800,000 convertible securities to be issued to Celtic Capital as a replacement of the Celtic Convertible Debt Securities, on the terms summarised Section 9.4 of this Prospectus.

Celtic Convertible Promissory Notes means 1,400,000 convertible securities to be issued to Celtic Capital as a replacement of the Celtic Promissory Notes, on the terms summarised at Section 9.6 of this Prospectus.

Celtic Offer means the offer of 36,000,000 New Options to Celtic Capital which are being issued under the terms of the Celtic Convertible Securities and offered under this Prospectus.

Celtic Promissory Notes means 1,400,000 debt securities issued to Celtic Capital with an initial face value of \$1.00 each and maturing 5 October 2013 and otherwise on the terms summarised at Section 9.6 of this Prospectus.

Cleansing Statement means a written notice by the Company to the ASX under Section 708A(5) of the Corporations Act that meets the requirements of Section 708A(6) of the Corporations Act and permits secondary trading of Shares on the ASX.

Closing Date means the date specified in the timetable set out at the commencement of this Prospectus (unless extended).

Company means Alcyone Resources Limited (ACN 056 776 160).

Company Group means the Company and any of its subsidiaries.

Convertible Security means a convertible security issued by the Company that is convertible into Shares by the holder or otherwise by the terms of its issue.

Constitution means the constitution of the Company as at the date of this Prospectus.

Corporations Act means the Corporations Act 2001 (Cth).

Debt Security means an unsecured note, debenture, or any other security that ASX deems to be a debt security, which the Company currently has on issue.

Directors means the directors of the Company as at the date of this Prospectus.

Eligible Shareholders means shareholders that are eligible to participate in the Entitlement Offer under the terms of this Prospectus.

Entitlement means the entitlement of a Shareholder who is eligible to participate in the Entitlement Offer.

Entitlement Offer means the non-renounceable entitlement issue the subject of this Prospectus.

Entitlement and Acceptance Form means the entitlement and acceptance form either attached to or accompanying this Prospectus.

Equity Placement Facility means the equity placement facility between the entered into between the Company and Celtic Capital on 10 April 2013 which is summarised at Section 9.7 of this Prospectus.

Exposure Period means the period of 7 days after the date of lodgement of this Prospectus, which period may be extended by the ASIC by not more than 7 days pursuant to Section 727(3) of the Corporations Act.

First Bergen Global Convertible Security means the convertible security issued by the Company to Bergen Global on 26 February 2013 with an initial face value of \$1,312,500 (current face value of \$1,062,500) maturing on 24 February 2015 and otherwise on the terms summarised in Section 9.1 of this Prospectus.

General Security Deed means the General Security Deed between the Company and Bergen Global dated 26 March 2013 which secures payment of all amounts owing to Bergen Global via the grant of a security interest over of all its present and future acquired personal property, a mortgage over all the Company Group's mining tenements, and a fixed charge over all the Company's present and after acquired property that is not classified as personal property.

Lead Manager means Patersons in their capacity as lead manager to the Entitlement Offer.

New Option means an Option issued on the terms set out in Section 7.2 of this Prospectus.

Notice of Meeting means the notice of meeting to be sent to Shareholders in accordance with the timetable at Section 2 of this Prospectus, which, amongst other things, seeks Shareholder approval for the Entitlement Offer.

Offers mean the Entitlement Offer, Celtic Offer, Broker Offer and Shortfall Offer.

Official Quotation means official quotation on ASX.

Off-take Agreement means the off-take agreement between the Company, Texas Silver Mines and Powerline a summary of which is included at Section 9.8 of this Prospectus.

Option means an option to acquire a Share.

Optionholder means a holder of an Option.

Patersons means Patersons Securities Limited.

Powerline means Powerline Value Fund II LLC, limited liability company registered in Delaware, USA.

Prospectus means this replacement prospectus which replaces the original prospectus dated 29 May 2013.

Performance Rights means any performance rights on issue in the capital of the Company that are convertible into Shares upon meeting certain performance hurdles and otherwise in accordance with the terms of issue.

Record Date means the date specified in the timetable set out at the commencement of this Prospectus.

Second Bergen Global Convertible Security means the Convertible Security to be issued to Bergen Global as a replacement of the \$250,000 Bergen Convertible Debt Security, on the terms summarised in Section 9.2 of this Prospectus.

Securities means Shares and/or New Options offered pursuant to the Entitlement.

Share means a fully paid ordinary share in the capital of the Company.

Shareholder means a holder of a Share.

Shareholder Meeting means the Shareholder general meeting to be held in accordance with the timetable at Section 2 of this Prospectus, which seeks shareholder approval for the matters set out in the Notice of Meeting.

Shortfall means the Securities not applied for under the Entitlement Offer (if any).

Shortfall Application Form means a Shortfall application form attached to this Prospectus.

Shortfall Offer means the offer of the Shortfall on the terms and conditions set out in Section 5.7 of this Prospectus.

Shortfall Securities means those Securities issued pursuant to the Shortfall.

Silver Stream Agreement is defined at Section 5.5 of this Prospectus.

Texas Silver Mines means Texas Silver Mines Pty Ltd, the Company's wholly owned subsidiary.

Third Bergen Global Convertible Security means the Convertible Security to be issued to Bergen Global as a replacement of the \$750,000 Bergen Convertible Debt Security, on the terms summarised in Section 9.3 of this Prospectus.

VWAP means volume weighted average price of Shares.

WST means Western Standard Time as observed in Perth, Western Australia.

YA Global means YA Global Master SPV, Ltd.

YA Global Convertible Security means the convertible security issued by the Company to YA Global on 26 February 2013 with an initial face value of \$1,312,500 (current face value of \$1,112,500) and maturing 24 February 2015 and otherwise on the terms summarised in Section 9.1 of this Prospectus.